
January 4, 2023 

AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING  
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
TO BE HELD AT 2029 EAST AVENUE Q, PALMDALE 

OR VIA TELECONFERENCE 

FOR THE PUBLIC: VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY 
DIAL-IN NUMBER: 571-748-4021  ATTENDEE PIN: 305-627-579# 
Submit Public Comments at: https://www.gomeet.com/305-627-579 

MONDAY, JANUARY 9, 2023 

6:00 p.m.  
NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting 
please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to 
inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under 
Agenda Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested 
at least 48 hours before the meeting.  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 with your 
request. (PWD Rules and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo 
la sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al 
público durante la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta 
directiva. Por favor de llamar Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y 
reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of 
the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East 
Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 
x1003 for public review of materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes.  
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or 
cheering.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District 
to carry out its meeting will not be permitted, and offenders will be requested to leave the 
meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance 
to take action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2-   January 4, 2023 

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.

5) Presentations:

5.1) None at this time.

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of Regular Board Meeting held December 12, 2022.

6.2) Approval of minutes of Special Board Meeting held December 19, 2022.

6.3) Ratification of payment of bills for December 26, 2022.

6.4) Payment of bills for January 9, 2023.

6.5) Approval of job description revision from Human Resources Analyst to Human
Resources & Safety Coordinator. (No Budget Impact – Human Resources 
Director Barragan-Garcia) 

6.6) Approval of Amendment No. 7 to General Manager Employment Agreement 
between Palmdale Water District and Dennis D. LaMoreaux dated July 30, 2015. 
(Budgeted – Budget Item No. 1-02-4000-000, Salaries – General Counsel Trindle) 

6.7) Approval of Software Data Housing proposal and project plan with Oxcyon 
Centralpoint. ($50,000.00-Not-to-Exceed plus annual recurring support of 
$15,750.00 – Budgeted – 2022 Capital Lease Funding – Information Technology 
Manager Stanton) 

6.8) Approval to reject claim received from Candie Schermerhorn, represented by Law 
Offices of Andrew Zeytuntsyan, and refer to Joint Powers Insurance Authority. 
(No Budget Impact – Finance Manager Hoffmeyer)  

7) Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Consideration and possible action on reorganization of the Board of Directors.
(No Budget Impact – General Counsel Trindle) 

7.2) Consideration and possible action on approval of the Emergency Response 
Agreement between the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association and 
Antelope Valley Mutual Water Companies. (No Budget Impact – Resource and 
Analytics Director/AVSWCA General Manager Thompson II) 

7.3) Consideration and possible action on authorizing staff to enter into a Professional 
Services Contract for Littlerock Dam Remediation with AECOM. ($140,468.00 – 
Budgeted – Budget Item No. 22-623 – Engineering Manager Rogers) 

7.4) Consideration and possible action to approve proposal and project plan for 
updating the District’s Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System 
(SCADA) with SoCal SCADA Solutions.   ($75,000.00-Not-to-Exceed – 
Budgeted – 2022 Capital Lease Funding – Information Technology Manager 
Stanton) 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -3-   January 4, 2023 

7.5) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2023 Budget: 

a) See attached list of conferences, seminars, and training sessions.

8) Information Items:

8.1) Reports of Directors:

a) Standing Committees; Organization Appointments; Agency Liaisons:

1) Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency (AVEK) – December 13
and December 20. (Director Dino, Board Liaison/Director Mac
Laren-Gomez, Alt.)

2) Special District Association North Los Angeles County
(SDANLAC) Board Meeting – December 14. (Director Dino,
CSDA Chapter Chair/President Dizmang)

3) Finance Committee Meeting – December 20. (Director Wilson,
Chair/President Dizmang)

4) Outreach Committee Meeting – December 21. (Director Mac
Laren-Gomez, Chair/Director Wilson)

b) General Meetings Reports of Directors.

8.2) Report of General Manager. 

8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Board members' requests for future agenda items.

10) Adjournment.

DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX, 
General Manager 

DDL/dd 



Page 1 of 5 

ATTACHMENT 7.5.a 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT JANUARY 9, 2023 AGENDA 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following 
conferences, seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2023 Budget:  

1) California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Webinar: Prevailing Wage Update
2023 to be held January 10, 2023. 

2) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Records Management to be held January 11-12, 2023.
3) CSDA Webinar: Brown Act Refresher and Updates to be held January 17, 2023.
4) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Board Best Practices to be held January 18, 2023.
5) CSDA Webinar: 2023 Annual Employee Law Update to be held January 24, 2023.
6) CSDA Virtual Workshop: HR Boot Camp for Special Districts to be held January 25-

26, 2023. 
7) CSDA Workshop Special District Leadership Academy (SDLA) Governance

Foundations to be held January 25, 2023 in Costa Mesa. 
8) CSDA Webinar: Ratepayer Assistance Funding & Water Shut-Off-Laws to be held

January 30, 2023. 
9) CSDA Webinar: Maximizing Employee Potential Through Coaching to be held January

31, 2023. 
10) CSDA Webinar: Sexual Harassment Prevention for Supervisors be held February 1,

2023. 
11) CSDA Webinar: Ethics AB 1234 Compliance Training to be held February 2, 2023.
12) CSDA Webinar: Public Records Act Requests 2023 to be held February 7, 2023.
13) 2023 California American Ground Water Trust-Association of Ground Water Agencies

(AGWT-AGWA) Groundwater Conference to be held February 7 - 8, 2023. 
14) CSDA Webinar: Sexual Harassment Prevention for Non-Supervisors to be held

February 9, 2023. 
15) CSDA Webinar: Grassroots Advocacy and Public Outreach to be held February 14,

2023. 
16) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Budget Preparations for Special Districts to be held February

15 - 16, 2023. 
17) CSDA Quarterly Leadership Book Club: Dare to Lead to be held February 17, 2023.
18) CSDA Webinar: Customer Service in the Public Sector to be held February 21, 2023.
19) Water Education Foundation Water 101 Workshop & Optional Tour to be held

February 23 – 24, 2023 in Sacramento. 
20) Antelope Valley Economic Development and Growth Enterprise (AV EDGE) to be

held February 24, 2023 in Lancaster. 
21) CSDA Emergency Preparedness Summit 2023 to be held February 24, 2023.
22) CSDA 2023 Special District Leadership Academy La Quinta to be held February 26 -

March 1, 2023 in La Quinta. 
23) CSDA Webinar: Learn ADA Compliance and Transparency Requirements to be held

February 28, 2023. 
24) Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) DC 2023 Water Conference to be

held February 28 – March 2, 2023. 



 
Page 2 of 5 

 

25) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Policy and Procedure Writing to be held March 1 - 2, 2023. 
26) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Build the Board Chair & Manager Connection to be held 

March 6 - 13, 2023. 
27) CSDA Webinar: Significance & Lifespan of Municipal Service Reviews to be held 

March 7, 2023. 
28) Water Education Foundation Lower Colorado River Tour to be held March 8 – 10, 

2023. 
29) ACWA: The Sustainable Water Investment Summit to be held March 9 - 10, 2023 in 

Rancho Palos Verdes. 
30) CSDA Webinar: Understanding Implicit Bias to be held March 14, 2023. 
31) CSDA Webinar: Intro to Special District Finances for Board Members to be held 

March 13, 2023. 
32) Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Spring Education Day to be 

held March 21 - 22, 2023 in Sacramento. 
33) ACWA 2023 Legislative Symposium to be held March 23, 2023 in Sacramento. 
34) CSDA Webinar: Grant Writing 101 for Special Districts to be held March 28, 2023. 
35) American Water Works Association California Nevada (AWWA-CA-NV) Utility 

Management Conference to be held March 28 - 31, 2023 in Sacramento. 
36) CSDA Workshop: Rate Setting Under Propositions 218 and 26 to be held March 29, 

2023 in Martinez. 
37) AWWA CA-NV Section Spring Conference 2023 to be held April 2 - 5, 2023 in San 

Diego. 
38) CSDA Webinar: How and Why Involvement in LAFCO Matters to be held April 4, 

2023. 
39) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Crisis Communications to be held April 5 – 6, 2023. 
40) CSDA Webinar: The Ever-Evolving Landscape of CyberSecurity to be held April 11, 

2023. 
41) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Prevailing Wage: Basics and Beyond to be held April 12 - 

13, 2023.  
42) CSDA Webinar: Employee Expression in the Workplace to be held April 25, 2023. 
43) CSDA Workshop: Financial Management for Special Districts to be held April 26, 

2023 in Sacramento. 
44) Public Relations Society of America (PRSA) Western District Conference to be held 

April 26 – 28, 2023 in Tucson, Arizona. 
45) 2023 California Association of Public Information Officials (CAPIO) Annual 

Conference to be held May 1 - 4, 2023 in Monterey. 
46) CSDA Webinar: The ABC’s of Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) to be 

held May 2, 2023. 
47) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Overview of Special District Laws to be held May 3 – 4, 

2023. 
48) ACWA 2023 Spring Conference & Exhibition to be held May 8 - 11, 2023 in 

Monterey. 
49) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Organizational Development to be held May 10, 2023. 
50) CSDA 2023 Special Districts Legislative Days to be held May 16 – 17, 2023 in 

Sacramento. 
51) CSDA Quarterly Leadership Book Club: Extreme Ownership to be held May 19, 2023. 



 
Page 3 of 5 

 

52) CSDA Virtual Workshop: California’s Public Contracting Laws to be held May 24, 
2023. 

53) CSDA Webinar: California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) Challenges to At-Large Board 
Elections to be held June 6, 2023. 

54) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Essential IT Leadership to be held June 7 - 8, 2023. 
55) Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) Annual Conference & Expo 2023 

be held June 11 - 14, 2023 in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
56) CSDA Webinar: Performance Management to be held June 13, 2023. 
57) CSDA 2023 General Manager Leadership Summit to be held June 25 – 27, 2023 in 

Olympic Valley. 
58) CSDA Webinar: How to Build a Better Multi-Year Strategic Plan to be held July 11, 

2023. 
59) CSDA Webinar: How Financing Gets Priced in the Capital Marketplace to be held July 

18, 2023. 
60) 38th Annual Tri-State Seminar to be held August 7 – 10, 2023 in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
61) CSDA 2023 Annual Conference & Exhibitor Showcase to be held August 28 – 31, 

2023 in Monterey. 
62) CSDA Webinar: Meeting Management Through Parliamentary Procedure to be held 

September 12, 2023. 
63) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Supervisory Skills for the Public Sector to be held 

September 13 - 14, 2023. 
64) CSDA Virtual Quarterly Leadership Book Club: 10 Must Reads to be held September 

22, 2023. 
65) 24th Annual CalPERS Educational Forum to be held October 2 - 4, 2023. 
66) CSDA Webinar: Best Practices for Board/Staff Roles & Communication to be held 

October 10, 2023. 
67) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Brown Act in an Endemic World to be held October 11 - 12, 

2023. 
68) CSDA Webinar: Ethics AB 1234 Compliance Training to be held October 17, 2023. 
69) CSDA Virtual Workshop: HR Boot Camp for Special Districts to be held October 18 – 

19, 2023. 
70) CSDA 2023 Special District Leadership Academy Sonoma County to be held October 

22 – 25, 2023 in Santa Rosa. 
71) CSDA Webinar: Sexual Harassment Prevention for Supervisors to be held October 24, 

2023. 
72) CSDA Virtual Workshop: Financial Management for Special Districts to be held 

October 25 – 26, 2023. 
73) CSDA Quarterly Leadership Book Club: Anxiety at Work to be held November 3, 

2023. 
74) WateReuse California Conference to be held November 5 – 7, 2023 in Indian Wells. 
75) CSDA 2023 Board Secretary/Clerk Conference to be held November 6 – 8, 2023 in 

Seaside. 
76) CSDA Webinar: Sexual Harassment Prevention for Non-Supervisors to be held 

November 7, 2023. 
77) CSDA Webinar: Guide to New Board Member Orientations to be held November 14, 

2023. 



 
Page 4 of 5 

 

78) ACWA 2023 Fall Conference & Exhibition to be held November 27 – 30, 2023 in 
Indian Wells. 

79) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: When Redistricting and the California Voter Rights Act 
Collide. 

80) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: 2022 Annual Employment Law Update. 
81) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: 2022 Emergency Preparedness Summit. 
82) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Ethics AB 1234 Compliance Training. 
83) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: 2022 Sexual Harassment Prevention Training. 
84) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: A Legislative, Legal and Local Response to PFAS 2021. 
85) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: A Practical Guide for Creating New Board Member 

Orientation. 
86) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Accessing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds. 
87) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Addressing Cybersecurity Risks. 
88) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Avoiding Common Mishaps-The Reasonable 

Accommodation Process. 
89) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: American Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk 

Assessment and Emergency Response Plan. 
90) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Board Member and District Liability Issues 2022. 
91) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Board Member/Trustee On-Demand Webinars Bundle. 
92) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Board Secretaries/Clerks Inspiration Knowledge. 
93) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Board Secretary/Clerk Bundle. 
94) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Brown Act Refresher and Updates. 
95) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Completing Your Form 700. 
96) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Customer Service in the Public Sector. 
97) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Developing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan. 
98) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Diversity and Inclusion: Why It Matters for Leaders. 
99) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Do’s and Don’ts of Initiative Campaigns. 
100) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Dude, My Boss is a Millennial. 
101) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Effective Management of People in a Hybrid Workplace. 
102) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Financing with Flexibility. 
103) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Fraud Detection and Prevention for Special Districts. 
104) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Gender Identity Issues in the Workplace. 
105) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: General Manager Evaluations. 
106) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: General Manager On-Demand Webinars Bundle. 
107) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Good Governance. 
108) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Handling the Eminent Domain Process. 
109) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: How and Why Special Districts Need to be Involved in 

LAFCO. 
110) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: How to Develop a Diversity/Equity/Inclusion/Belonging 

(DEIB) Roadmap for Your Agency. 
111) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: How to Handle an Unexpected Surge in Public Records 

Act (PRA) Requests. 
112) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Increase Efficiency with Cloud Technology. 
113) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Independent Contractors, Dynamex, and AB5. 
114) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Is Your District “Recession Ready?” 
115) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Latest Trends in Municipal Financing. 



Page 5 of 5 

116) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Maximizing Employee Potential Through the 
Coaching/Eval. 

117) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Navigating Prop 218 Rates and Fees. 
118) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Navigating the Surplus Land Act. 
119) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: National Special Districts Coalition (NSDC) Overview of 

the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. 
120) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: NSDC Presents: Guide to State & Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds. 
121) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Online ADA Compliance & Transparency Requirements. 
122) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Performance Management: A Change Agent. 
123) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Prudently and Proactively Managing Pension Liabilities. 
124) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Public Records Act Requests 2020. 
125) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Records Retention and Management in the Electronic 

Age. 
126) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Reserve Policies for Special Districts: How Much is 

Enough? 
127) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Revenue Enhancements for Special Districts. 
128) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Rules of Order Made Easy! 
129) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Save the Drama: Managing Challenging Employee 

Situations. 
130) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: SB1383 Reducing Short-Lived Climate Pollutants in 

California. 
131) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: School Partnerships. 
132) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Search Engine Optimization (SEO) to Support 

Communication. 
133) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Special District Workforce Partnerships. 
134) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Special Districts & Nextdoor: Opportunity is Knocking. 
135) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Strategic Planning for Special Districts. 
136) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Take Action: Engaging With Your Legislators. 
137) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: The ABC's of SDLF. 
138) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: The Critical Nature of Communications in the Public 

Agency. 
139) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: The Future of Evolving COVID-19 ETS. 
140) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: The Great Board Chair. 
141) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: The New World of Remote Work. 
142) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Tips and Tricks for CSDA Annual Awards. 
143) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Tools for Managing Disaster Response and Recovery. 
144) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Tools for Workplace Violence De-escalation. 
145) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Water and Service Rates in Today’s Environment. 
146) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: What Every Board Member Should Know. 
147) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: What Special Districts Need to Know About the 

California Public Records Act (CPRA). 
148) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: What to Expect From Your Financial Department. 
149) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: What’s New in Prevailing Wage. 
150) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Who Does What? Best Practices in Board/Staff 

Relations. 
151) CSDA On-Demand Webinar: Winning Federal Grants. 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 3, 2023 January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mrs. Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Dir. 

VIA Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.5 – APPROVAL OF JOB DESCRIPTION REVISION 
FROM HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST TO HUMAN RESOURCES & SAFETY 
COORDINATOR. (NO BUDGET IMPACT – HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
BARRAGAN-GARCIA) 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Board approve the job description and salary range from a Human 
Resources Analyst position to a Human Resources & Safety Coordinator position. 

Alternative Options: 
The Board can choose to not approve this revision. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 
The Human Resources Analyst job description will remain, but it is not an entry-level position.  

Background: 
The Board of Directors approved the Human Resources Analyst position on October 24, 2022. 
This position has been re-evaluated, and staff recommends it be revised to a Human Resources & 
Safety Coordinator position to provide an entry-level position and a path for internal candidates. 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 
This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 2 – Organizational Excellence. 
This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 
The Human Resources & Safety Coordinator position will be at a lower salary range than the 
Human Resources Analyst. The range for the Human Resources & Safety Coordinator will be 
Range 27.   

Supporting Documents: 
 Human Resources & Safety Coordinator job description

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.5



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

HUMAN RESOURCES & SAFETY COORDINATOR 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

JOB SUMMARY 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of routine technical and administrative duties involved in 
providing support to the of the District's comprehensive human resources management, risk and safety 
program. 

Supervision Received and Exercised 
Direct supervision is received from the Director of Human Resources.  

Example of Essential Duties 
Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

- Develops and maintains a variety of personnel files, records, and documents; enters and maintains a 
variety of data in the human resources information system to ensure that employee records are accurate 
and up-to-date.  

- Processes a variety of personnel actions (e.g., new hires, promotions, terminations, transfers, salary 
adjustments, leaves of absence); coordinates personnel actions with payroll activities to ensure accurate 
processing of personnel actions and maintenance of personnel status.  

- Provides technical and administrative support to recruitment processes including preparing and posting 
job announcements, administering advertising and recruiting efforts, screening and managing 
applications in the online applicant tracking system, managing applicant communications, identifying 
and soliciting the participation of subject matter experts, scheduling tests and interviews, preparing test 
and interview materials, compiling and recording proper documentation, and preparing eligibility lists.  

- Coordinates selection, pre-employment, and onboarding processes including scheduling selection 
interviews, initiating background checks, extending job offers, preparing and issuing offer letters, 
arranging pre-employment physicals, conducting new employee orientation, and entering new employee 
data in required systems.  

- Provides technical and administrative support to the administration of District benefit programs (e.g., 
medical, dental, disability, life, FSA, employee recognition, COBRA, open enrollment, etc.) including 
assisting in the intake, review, and submission of enrollment forms, entering enrollment data into 
vendor systems, and conducting monthly invoice preparation or audit.  

- Coordinates the District’s employee training program including managing the training calendar, 
scheduling, and assigning training, tracking and monitoring completion, and maintaining related records; 
administers the online training platform, including adding and maintaining user accounts.  

- Coordinates the employee performance evaluation process, including tracking and following up on 
overdue evaluations; administers the online performance appraisal system, including adding and 
maintaining user accounts as applicable.  

- Provides technical and administrative support to the risk management function, including worker’s 
compensation and occupational health and safety as directed by Director of Human Resources.  



Human Resources & Safety Coordinator 
- 2 - 
 
 

  

- Provides information and assistance to employees, the public, and external agencies pertaining to human 
resources issues and programs; interprets, applies, and explains contract provisions, administrative 
policies and procedures, and state and federal laws and regulations.  

- Tracks, compiles, and maintains a variety of data and reports; responds to requests for information such 
as requests for salary and benefits data from external agencies.  

- Reviews and processes a variety of billing and payments including those pertaining to insurance billing 
and employee reimbursements.  

- Performs a variety of clerical and administrative support functions to support the efficient and effective 
operations of the Human Resources Division.  

- Performs special projects and assignments in support of the Human Resources Division; assists the 
Human Resources Director with collecting and compiling data and information during Human 
Resources related surveys. Leads Outreach efforts for the Human Resources Division.              

- Performs other duties as assigned 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 
- Principles and practices of public personnel and management. 
- Principles and practices of risk management and liability. 
- Clerical and general technical principles and practices of public employment human resources 

administrative support functions including those related to record keeping, training, and employee benefit 
administration. 

- Pertinent local, State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations. 
- Office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and applicable software applications such 

as word processing, spreadsheets, and databases. 
 
Ability to: 
- Plan, coordinate, and assist on the administration and operations of the Human Resources Department. 
- Communicate diplomatically and knowledgeably while assisting District employees, retirees, and members 

of the public with human resources related inquiries and concerns.  

- Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and implement 
recommendations in support of goals. 

- Interpret and apply District and department policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. 
- Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
- Establish and maintain effective and cooperative working relationships. 
- Read, analyze, evaluate, and summarize written material and statistical data. 
- Conduct studies and analyses and prepare reports of findings and recommendations. 
- Exercise good judgment and maintain confidentiality in critical, sensitive, and confidential information, 

records, and reports. 
- Drive vehicle safely.  
 
EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING 
Any combination of experience and training that would provide the required knowledge and abilities is 
qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and abilities would be: 



Human Resources & Safety Coordinator 
- 3 - 
 
 

  

 
Experience 
Two (2) years of human resources or administrative support experience. Experience in a governmental or utility 
setting is preferred. 
 
Training 
Equivalent to an Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in human 
resource management, business, public administration, or a related field. 
 
License and Certificate 
- Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California Driver’s License. 
- Possession of a Certificate in Human Resources Management from an accredited college or professional 

organization is required or ability to obtain within twelve (12) months.  
- Possession of Advanced Safety & Health Certificate or ability to obtain within two (2) years. 
- Required use of cell phone with data plan. 
 
PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 
Constantly, walk stand, kneel, climb, and bend in the field; sit while studying or preparing reports and driving in 
vehicle or operating equipment; perform simple and power grasping, pushing, pulling and fine manipulation; 
·intermittently write or use a keyboard to communicate; and lift or carry weight up to 25 pounds. Additionally, 
the incumbent in this position works outdoors in all weather conditions, including wet, hot and cold with 
extreme sun exposure. Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations. 
 
Approved:  

 
I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 
 
___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature                                                       Date 
 
___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature     Date 
 
 
The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to be all-inclusive.  They 
represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully perform the job. 

 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023 January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE:  AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.6 – APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 7 TO GENERAL 
MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN PALMDALE WATER 
DISTRICT AND DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX DATED JULY 30, 2015. 
(BUDGETED – BUDGET ITEM NO. 1-02-4000-000, SALARIES – GENERAL 
COUNSEL TRINDLE) 

Contract Amendment No. 7 to the General Manager Employment Agreement dated July 
30, 2015 is attached.  Amendment No. 7 was prepared based on the outcome of the General 
Manager evaluation conducted on December 19, 2022 and authorizes a 7.0% cost of living 
increase, which is equivalent to the cost of living increase provided to District staff. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Seventh Amendment to the General Manager Employment Agreement between Palmdale
Water District and Dennis D. LaMoreaux

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.6



01184.0004/845700.1 -1- 

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE 

GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT AND DENNIS D. LAMOREAUX 

This SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT AND DENNIS D. 
LAMOREAUX (the “Seventh Amendment”) is made and entered into on January 9, 2023, by and 
between the PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized and existing under 
Division 11 of the California Water Code, a (hereinafter the “District”), and DENNIS D. 
LAMOREAUX, an individual (hereinafter the “General Manager”).   

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2015, the District entered into that certain General Manager 
Employment Agreement Between Palmdale Water District And Dennis D. LaMoreaux to be 
effective July 30, 2015, as amended on July 26, 2017, May 14, 2018, June 10, 2019, July 13, 2020, 
June 14, 2021 and May 23, 2022 (collectively, the “Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, Section 4.2 of the Agreement provides that if General Manager receives a 
satisfactory performance evaluation from the District Board of Directors (“Board”), then his 
annual base salary shall be increased by the percentage increase provided to other District staff 
based on the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) 
for Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim calculated for September of each calendar year, plus any 
additional merit-based increase that may be provided in the Board’s discretion; and 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2022, the Board completed a performance evaluation of the 
General Manager pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Board remains satisfied with the performance of the General Manager, 
and desires to provide General Manager a 7.0 percent (7.0%) cost of living adjustment to General 
Manager’s base salary—equivalent to the percentage increase provided to other District staff for 
the current calendar year and as calculated in September of 2022; and  

WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the Agreement allows for any amendment, alteration, extension 
or modification to the Agreement in writing, signed by the parties hereto, and approved by the 
affirmative vote of three (3) members of the Board at a public meeting with the written consent of 
the General Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the General Manager desires to accept these employment terms as such from 
the District and has provided his written consent to the following terms and conditions in this 
Seventh Amendment; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, District 
and General Manager hereby agree as follows:  



 

01184.0004/845700.1  -2- 

AGREEMENT 

SECTION 1.  The above recitals are incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein.  

SECTION 2. Section 4.1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as 
follows:  

“4.1  Annual Base Compensation.  General Manager’s base salary effective 
May 24, 2022 was Two Hundred Ninety Two Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty 
Eight Dollars and Seventy Four Cents ($292,788.74).  Effective January 10, 2023 
General Manager’s base salary shall be increased by 7.0 percent (7.0%) consistent 
with the cost of living adjustment received by other District staff. The new base 
salary shall be Three Hundred Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Three 
Dollars and Ninety Five Cents ($313,283.95).  General Manager’s salary may be 
adjusted from time to time in accordance with Section 4.2 hereinafter, or as this 
Agreement may be amended.  Such salary shall be payable in twenty-six (26) equal 
installments at the same time as other Department Head employees of District are 
paid, pro-rated for the remaining number of pay periods after the effective date 
described herein.  Such salary shall be adjusted for payroll taxes, workers’ 
compensation, and other payroll-related liability costs.” 

SECTION 3. Except as expressly amended by this Seventh Amendment, the underlying 
terms, conditions, and compensation of General Manager by District as and for his employment as 
General Manager shall be as set forth in the Agreement (as amended on July 26, 2017, May 14, 
2018, June 10, 2019, July 13, 2020, June 14, 2021, and May 23, 2022). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT has caused this Seventh 
Amendment to be signed and executed on its behalf by its President, and duly attested by its 
officers thereunto duly authorized, and GENERAL MANAGER has signed and executed this 
Seventh Amendment, both in duplicate. 
 Palmdale Water District 
 

______________________________ 
Gloria Dizmang, President 
Dated:  ________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
G. Ross Trindle, III, General Counsel 
Dated:  

GENERAL MANAGER 
 
______________________________ 
Dennis D. LaMoreaux 
Dated:  ________________________ 

 
[END OF SIGNATURES] 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023 January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Regular Board Meeting 

FROM: Jim Stanton, Information Technology Manager 
Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.7 – APPROVAL OF SOFTWARE DATA HOUSING 
PROPOSAL AND PROJECT PLAN WITH OXCYON CENTRALPOINT. 
($50,000.00-NOT-TO-EXCEED PLUS ANNUAL RECURRING SUPPORT OF 
$15,750.00 – BUDGETED – 2022 CAPITAL LEASE FUNDING – INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY MANAGER STANTON)   

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with Oxcyon Centralpoint (Centralpoint) for an 
amount not to exceed Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) and annual recurring support of 
Fifteen-Thousand Seven-Hundred Fifty Dollars ($15,750.00).  

Alternative Options: 

The District can leave the system as-is. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

District personnel will continue to struggle to locate data in the multiple data silos existing in the 
District.     

Background: 

The District currently has several data silos existing in multiple data formats and locations.  This 
no longer suits the needs of the District and is difficult, if not almost impossible, to locate and use 
the data we currently store. There is no system that allows users to access data from all these 
different sources.     

The Centralpoint solution acts as a central repository for this data and through a system of business 
intelligence allows users to easily extract and use that data in multiple formats: graphs, charts, 
dashboards, etc.   

Centralpoint consolidates disparate, siloed data while supporting secure authentication to filter 
access by role and departments. 

Staff anticipates a six to eight month implementation period. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.7



2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager            January 2, 2023 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 2 – Organization Excellence. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

2022 Capital Lease Funding: 
 One time cost not-to-exceed Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).
 Annual recurring cost, starting 2024, Fifteen-Thousand Seven-Hundred Fifty Dollars

($15,750.00).

Supporting Documents: 

 Centralpoint Proposal and Project Plan
 Centralpoint Presentation



Page 1  -CONFIDENTIAL     Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan  

Palmdale Water District 
 A Digital Experience Platform for your Employee, Departments and Water related data. 

Submitted to: 
Palmdale Water District 

       2029 East Avenue Q 
Palmdale, CA 93550 

Jim Stanon 
jstanton@palmdalewater.org  
661-456-1050 

Submitted on: 10/05/2022 
Submitted by:  
Oxcyon, Inc. 
Kevin Michnicki 
Sales Engineer 



 
 

Page 2  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Jim, 
 
     Please accept this letter, Proposal and Attachments as our formal response to your request for proposal. Oxcyon is proposing 
a very unique solution for Palmdale Water District, A leading platform across all verticals for any project that requires roles-based 
management of data, regardless of type.  
 
 
     Please find attached within this proposal: 
 

1.) Overview of Our proposed solution & (Recorded Video of our Demo with you   Page     3 
2.) Software License & Services Agreement (Includes Prices)      Page  4-6 
3.) Preliminary Project Plan - Deliverables & responsibilities       Page 7-13 
4.) Special Notes or Considerations for Palmdale Water District Project     Page    14 

 
 
  

       Oxcyon, Inc. is a privately held Ohio Corporation (founded in 2000), whose Federal Tax ID# is 34-1935069, and 
D&B#139213545. Oxcyon is headquartered at: 127 N. Cleveland Massillon Rd. Bath, Ohio 44333 and maintains offices and (US 
Citizen) employees only in the US and outsources none of the work proposed herein.  
 
 If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at: 440-239-8631 or via email kmichnicki@oxcyon.com  
to answer any questions you have, or even to set up another demo (we typically do many prior to signature).  
 
Regards, 
 

 
Kevin Michnicki  
Sales Engineer   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 3  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

Centralpoint for Palmdale Water District’s Portal Project 
 
     Oxcyon is proposing the implementation of its Gartner recognized Centralpoint Digital Experience Platform for Palmdale Water 
District’s portal project. Centralpoint brings over 220 out of the box, market ready modules which will be configured and 
customized specifically to meet the needs of your project. This proposal includes a breakdown of those costs, deliverables, and 
overall expectations of both vendor and client in the process.   
 
     Oxcyon is proud to be able to show you a High-Fidelity Prototype of Centralpoint specifically for Palmdale Water District’s 
Portal Project, before you sign. This approach almost completely eliminates your risk, able to see and prove our capabilities ahead 
of time. This is an approach no other vendors take, because they are unable to. The fact that they cannot show you the same 
level of functionality (prior to your signature) speaks volumes, and we thank you for stepping back and giving this some thought. 
Our approach is revolutionary in our space, and if overlooked, could make all the difference in the world.  
 
 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT’s High Fidelity Prototype (shown during demo): https://palmdale.oxd20.com/ 
 
     Centralpoint is a Digital Experience Platform which means that it goes way beyond enterprise content management system. It 
is an intelligent omnichannel platform which personalizes the experience for each of your many users types, by their roles. It takes 
knowledge management to a highly personalized level, giving each user the information, they need, securely and quickly.     

 
 
Centralpoint© streamlines your information while providing you Total LCO (Lower Cost of Ownership): 
 

 Centralization of content and information (Data) from multiple, disparate systems  

 Scalability (N-Tiered architecture allows for as many hierarchical channels that grow with you) 

 Security (Integration with AD, LDAP, SAML, oAuth and others)  

 Eliminate Obsolescence via Oxcyon’s ‘bi-weekly’ updates; regardless of where you host (on prem/cloud) 

 Ease-of-Use for Everyday Content Contributors, Editors, and IT 

 Web API/Web Services Integration (support of RESTful web services, integration to or from any back-office system) 

 Live Reporting (graph, charts, alerts) of all of your users activity, including gamification 

 Improved Business Process Management, leveraging digital workflow of forms, documents and more. 

 Rapid development – Faster time to market, via a market ready modular architecture 

 Intelligent Document Management – including DITA to streamline your ‘changing’ documents 

 Integrated online education, compliance and eCommerce 

 Personalized Email Alerts for all members  

 Data Migration and warehousing (Only vendor to be able to migrate you easily, and keep it updated automatically) 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 4  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
 

Software License and Service Agreement 
 

This Software License and Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of this _____ day of _____________,2022, between  
Oxcyon, of 17520 Engle Lake Drive, Middleburg Hts., Ohio 44130 USA herein referred to as ("Oxcyon") and:   

 
 

Palmdale Water District 
                   2029 East Avenue Q 
                    Palmdale, CA 93550 
 

     in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained in this agreement, the parties agree as stated herein. 
 
1. LICENSE 

       A. Oxcyon hereby grants to Palmdale Water District’s, hereinafter referred to as “Client” a software license for Centralpoint Digital Experience 
Platform which is non-exclusive, and nontransferable license. This license agreement is subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to 
use the object code for the Software. For the purpose of this Agreement, "Software" shall mean all versions of Centralpoint Digital Experience 
Platform©, including current, and subsequent versions, of all Centralpoint© software products, together with operating instructions, user manuals, 
training material, and other documentation as may, in Oxcyon's sole discretion, be supplied to Palmdale Water District’s.  
 
a.) SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

Qty Item Unit Cost Description 

1 
Centralpoint© Portal License and 
services for Palmdale Water District 
Portal Project.  

 $75,000.00 

Centralpoint© Site license (Single) Portal License. Singular 
portal project only. Includes all asset content modules  (See 

Attachment), unlimited users,  
See Attachment A - Preliminary Project Plan Video 

1 GS License Discount -$25.500.00 Government Services Discount 

1 Implementation of Design/UI Included in license 
Implementation of UX/UI Responsive Design limited to only the 

Palmdale Water District Project, See Design 

1 Data Migration & Scrubbing Included in license 
Migration of content/data relating only to the Palmdale Water 

District’s project includes any associated data from legacy data 
to be imported into Centralpoint) See Data Transfer

1 Complete Project Management Included in license 
All Project Management services project. (Please see attached 

Preliminary Project Plan) 

1 Training Included in license All Training including Video recorded sessions. See Training 

1 Maintenance M-F, 8am-5pm Included in license 
Included with first year optional and available starting year two 

at 14% of purchase fee  See Maintenance 

1 Stream of Enhancements (Bi-Weekly) Included in license 
Included with first year optional and available starting year two 

at 7% of purchase fee  See Evergreen Updates 

 Total Investment 1st year. $49,500.00 Total investment year one, optional support maintenance and 
stream of enhancements included for year 1

 Year two and beyond. $15,750.00 Fees Starting year two, 21% of project total based off of pre-
discounted fees.  

 
2. PRICES & PAYMENT 

 
A. Direct purchase: Payable as follows; Deposit of 70% of annual Fee due upon signature, the balance 30% due upon implementation and 

launch of the project. Payment shall be overdue thirty (30) days after the delivery date specified on the invoice. Overdue payments shall be subject to 
a finance charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) for each month or fraction thereof that the invoice is overdue, or the highest interest rate 
permitted by applicable law, whichever is lower. Oxcyon shall also be reimbursed for reasonable collection costs actually incurred in the event of 
non-payments, including reasonable attorney's fees.      

 
B. The prices stated in Oxcyon quotations are exclusive of any federal, state, municipal, value-added, foreign withholding or other governmental 

taxes, duties, fees, excises, or tariffs now or hereafter imported on the production, storage, licensing, tale, transportation, import, expect or use of the 
Software or any improvements, alterations, or amendments to the Software. Client shall be responsible for, and if necessary reimburse, Oxcyon for 
all such taxes, duties, fees, excises, or tariffs, except for governmental or local taxes imposed on Oxcyon's corporate net income. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

Page 5  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
3. SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 
 
         A. Oxcyon agrees to provide Palmdale Water District’s with software maintenance subject to the following provisions and conditions: 
              i. Oxcyon shall provide Palmdale Water District’s with full software maintenance and support for the first year from execution of agreement. 
Beyond first year, Oxcyon will make available at the rate outlined in 1.) (a) Schedule of Fees to Client. Software maintenance shall include (i) 
telephone and electronic mail support provided during Oxcyon's normal working hours, and (ii) standard releases containing improvements or 
modifications to the Software, where such improvements or modifications are not priced as separate new products or options ("Standard Release"). 
All issues submitted to Oxcyon should be submitted via 24/7 access to Oxcyon’s Issue Management system, online: 
https://oxcyoninc.aceproject.com/ to submit issues at any time, (iv) Optional recurring software maintenance or hosting fees are due and payable 
monthly or annual in advance of that service period; in all other respects payments are subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement. Oxcyon 
shall be held harmless for any issue which has not been submitted within the aforementioned issue management system and tagged appropriately to 
the Project Manager assigned to the account. 

 
             ii. Client shall designate one or, with Oxcyon's prior written approval, more than one Support Contact Person, who shall be responsible for 
communicating support issues to Oxcyon. Client agrees to provide Oxcyon with timely written notification containing all details of software problems 
necessary for Oxcyon to diagnose such problems. Client agrees to cooperate fully in providing Oxcyon with Client ’s source code, in machine-
readable form, and order materials necessary to reproduce a reported software problem. Subject to Client ’s security requirements, Client agrees to 
provide Oxcyon reasonable direct or remote access and test time on Client ’s Oxcyon system, for the purpose of diagnosing reported software 
problems. If Oxcyon provides on-site services at Client ’s request in connection with software maintenance, Client shall reimburse Oxcyon for all 
travel and other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred with respect to such services. 
       
4. WARRANTY 
          For purposes of this Agreement, the sole source of specifications shall be Oxcyon's written user documentation. Oxcyon will, as its sole and 
exclusive liability to Client , use due diligence to correct any nonconformity and provide Client  with one copy of any such corrected version of the 
Software, or, if Oxcyon is unable to correct such non-conformances within a reasonable period of time, refund all license fees paid to it for the 
Software, or the most recent software maintenance fee paid for the Software, if the nonconformity relates to a Standard Release delivered pursuant 
to Section 3 herein. Oxcyon further represents and warrants to Client that Oxcyon has all rights to grant the license and transfer title as set forth in 
this Agreement. THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AND Oxcyon 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 
 
5. INDEMNIFICATION 
   Oxcyon shall defend and hold Client harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, costs, demands and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney fees and legal costs) whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the infringement of the Software of any third party’s 
intellectual property rights.  Client agrees to promptly notify Oxcyon of any claim of infringement by a third party and allow Oxcyon the right to control 
the defense of such claims. The foregoing limitation of liability shall not apply to Oxcyon’s infringement indemnification obligations.    

 
6. CONFIDENTIALITY OF SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTS 
         A. Client shall not reproduce, duplicate, copy, sell, or otherwise disclose, or disseminate the Software, including operating instructions, user 
manuals, and training materials, in any medium except as authorized herein. Client may make copies of the Software, in machine readable form, only 
as is reasonably necessary for archival and backup purposes. 
 
         B. Client  expressly undertaken, using reasonable efforts not less than it exercises for its own confidential materials, to retain in confidence, and 
to require its employees or consultants to retain the Software in confidence, and will make no use of such information, except under the terms and 
during the existence of this Agreement, and only to the extent that such use is necessary to Client ’s employees or consultants in the course of their 
employment. 
 
         C. Client shall not release to a third party the results of any benchmark of the Software, or of any third party products embedded in the 
Software, without Oxcyon's prior written approval, except that Client may release such results to its parent and affiliated corporations provided Client 
’s parent and affiliated corporations agree to retain such results in confidence. 
 
 7. TERM/TERMINATION 
         This Agreement is effective on the earlier of (i) the date of shipment of the Software or (ii) the date set forth above, and continues until 
terminated as provided herein, or by agreement of both parties. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon: (a) any material breach of this 
Agreement by the other that is not cured (represented by the closure of any issue within Oxcyon’s Issue Management System) within 10 days 
following written notice (sent via US Mail) thereof; or (b) failure by Client to pay license fees for Software under the payment terms specified in this 
Agreement or as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing. Upon termination of this Agreement for any of the above reasons, all licenses granted 
hereunder terminate and Client will immediately destroy the Software and all copies in any form. Upon termination for any other reason, Client may 
continue to use the Software, provided that Sections 1, 2 (to the extent that any amounts are owed to Oxcyon as of the termination date), 4, 6, 7, and 
8, shall survive the termination of this Agreement, and Oxcyon may terminate Client ’s use of the Software upon a material breach of any of the 
surviving sections.  
    
8. GENERAL 
         A. WAIVER/AMENDMENT. No waiver, amendment, or modification of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and 
signed by the party against whom such waiver, amendment, or modification is sought to be enforced. No failure or delay by either party in exercising 
any right, power or remedy under this Agreement, except as specifically provided herein, shall be deemed as a waiver of any such right, power, or 
remedy. 
 



 
 

Page 6  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
 
 
         B. ASSIGNMENT. Either party may assign this Agreement to an entity acquiring substantially all of its assets or merging with it, provided that 
such assignee agree in writing to assume all obligations under this Agreement. Except as set forth above, neither party may assign any of its rights 
or delegate any of its obligations under this Agreement to any third party without the express written consent of the other. Any attempted assignment 
in violation of the foregoing shall be void and of no effect. Subject to the above, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
 
         C. DISPUTES. The rights of the parties hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio without giving effect to principles of 
conflicts of laws. Client acknowledges that the Software contains trade secrets, the disclosure of which would cause substantial harm to Oxcyon that 
could not be remedied by the payment of damages alone. Accordingly, Oxcyon will be entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief and 
other equitable relief for upon legally required proof of any breach of Oxcyon's intellectual property rights in the Software. 

 
D. SEVERABILITY, if any provision of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

        E. NOTICE. Any notice, consent, or other communication hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be given personally, by confirmed fax or 
express delivery to either party at their respective addresses, or such other address as may be designated by written notice of either party. Notice 
shall be deemed given when delivered or transmitted, or seven days after deposit in the mail. 

 
        F. FORCE MAJEURE. If the performance of this Agreement or any obligation hereunder, except the making of payments, is prevented, 
restricted, or interfered with by reason of any act or condition beyond the reasonable control of the affected party, the party so affected will be 
excused from performance to the extent of such prevention, restricting, or interference. 
 
         G. RESTRICTIONS. Client shall be restricted from transferring the Title of the Software by any means, directly or indirectly, to anyone 
other than a full-time employee, officer, or subsidiary of Client without the written consent of Oxcyon Client acknowledges that the Software 
will be licensed and used for the sole purpose of Client and its subsidiaries, divisions and related organizations. Client is restricted from the 
use of the Software, which may be considered to be a sublicense, and requires the written consent and costs for any sublicense offered to 
any third party. Client is further restricted from contacting Oxcyon’s current Client s, named accounts, and future Client prospects.  

 
  H. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all Attachments hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all proposals, oral, or written, all previous negotiations, and all other 
communications between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This agreement shall remain assignable, and the terms of this 
Agreement shall provide notwithstanding any different, conflicting, or additional terms that may appear in any purchase order or other Client  
document. All products and services delivered by Oxcyon to Client are subject to the terms of this Agreement, unless specifically addressed in a 
separate agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreed to on this____day of____________ , 2022, by: 
 
 
 
Palmdale Water District:    Oxcyon: 
 
 
 
Authorized Representative    Designated Representative 
      
 
 
 
______________________________________  _______________________________ 
Signature of Palmdale Water District,    Date   Officer   Date 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________   ________________________________ 
Printed Name/Title     Printed Name/Title 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 7  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 

Preliminary Project Plan 
Attachment A – Scope of Work for Palmdale Water District  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Submitted to:  
Palmdale Water District 
2029 East Avenue Q,  
Palmdale, CA 93550 
 
Submitted by: 
Joe Frey | jfrey@oxcyon.com 
Production Manager 
Oxcyon Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 8  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
 
  
 
Jim, 
 
Kindly share with any other resources who may be working on the project with you.  
 
     Welcome to Oxcyon’s Production Management and thank you for selecting Oxcyon as your Digital Experience Platform. My 
name is Joe Frey, Production Manager with Oxcyon -- and have been assigned to the Palmdale’s Portal project as your singular, 
central point of contact for anything relating to this project. I have over 16 years’ experience leading projects like this and am 
familiar with all aspects of common tasks like UX/UI, Data Migration, Taxonomy, Design, Security (SSO) and anything relating to 
the overall digital experience for your members. Given my experience with many other platforms and technology in this space, I 
believe wholeheartedly that you have selected the best possible platform, and you will be surprised at the level of functionality and 
rapid deployment model we bring to you. Oxcyon, per Gartner, is a feature rich, market ready application, but as you know, no 
successful project can be deployed 100% Out-of-the Box. That is where I come in, my job is to mold Centralpoint’s many functions 
around your specific needs.   
  
     I will be administering your project tasks (for you) to our internal resources which include designers, analysts, database 
engineers, integration specialists, and quality control personnel. I will be the voice of Oxcyon and Centralpoint© during this project 
and will likely be speaking with you periodically until it is launched. During these meetings, I will also be providing you training 
along the way, should you be interested in maintaining the site yourselves (post launch).  At risk of being presumptuous, I have 
attached this Preliminary Project Plan which outlines (initially and at a high level) the scope of the engagement, and likely this will 
change slightly as we gather more information from one another. I wanted our team to give you a high-level view of what to expect 
from our project team – and when to expect it. 
 
     I believe it is important to establish realistic expectations regarding your project before writing one line of code or importing one 
database of content. Below, please find our interpretation of what your organization can expect from us. Each project has its own 
set of challenges, and we believe the best way to approach it is to break it into pieces, we call P4D: Discover, Design, Develop 
and Deploy..  
 

DISCOVER- At the start of a project, we begin the discovery process to accurately define the requirements necessary for 
the project to be successful. We examine the business objectives, target audience, competition, technology 
considerations, and anything else considered a contributing factor. By the end of discovery, we essentially have the 
roadmap for the rest of the engagement. The key to enterprise and its success amongst the Employees, will be the 
understanding and development of taxonomy strategy for Palmdale Water District including categories and hierarchical 
relationships of the many types. 

 
DESIGN - The design phase is focused on establishing the framework for building the defined solution. We analyze the 
required data elements, finalize creative style and direction, and establish the architectural design and technical 
environment. Additionally, we examine multiple business scenarios to validate that the framework will accomplish the 
project's stated objectives. During this phase we will work with Palmdale Water District to establish a framework which 
incorporates best practices. 

 

DEVELOP -During the development phase of the Portal, we incrementally build a complete solution until it is ready to be 
shared with the target audience. This implies fleshing out the detailed design, completing the development cycle, and 
then focusing on testing and debugging. Please read more on our Quality Control later in this proposal, under Testing 
Procedures. 

 

DEPLOY -The official "launch" of the Palmdale’s Portal occurs in the deploy phase. As appropriate, we integrate any 
marketing and promotional tactics, requirements, and maintenance programs and establish an evolution plan for future 
enhancements. We conclude with a project wrap-up, during which we ask our Palmdale Water District to evaluate our 
performance so we can continue to exceed expectations. 

  
    Once we are completed this P4D process re-cycles after deployment as Oxcyon strives to work with you and the staff of 
Palmdale Water District to ‘discover’ new ways moving forward to further improve the flow of information within your organization. 
This is why we update our product every two weeks, because technology is always improving, and we view our relationship with 
Palmdale Water District as a partnership; where our role is to keep you abreast of new opportunities to run more efficiently. 

 
 



 
 

Page 9  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
What to expect from Oxcyon’s Production Management Team: 
 

1.) Professionalism, Organization, Honesty & Direct Communication, rapid response to any Issue submitted 
2.) A pledge to streamline and eliminate redundant static content wherever possible  
3.) Provide consultative, forward-looking plans on how to structure your site 
4.) Allow any member of your organization to become a content publisher – if need be 
5.) Train key individuals within your organization on how best to use Centralpoint© 
6.) Supply tools for easy import and export of data  
7.) Migrate your data and content to a portable framework that gives you maximum control 
8.) Provide ongoing customer support 
9.) Bi-Weekly updates to the technology we install for you, eliminating obsolescence via our Evergreen Update 
10.) Professional Services 

a. Assessment Palmdale Water District’s requirements (Discovery Process) 
b. Assessment of Palmdale Water District’s Taxonomy & Metadata 
c. Assessment of Palmdale Water District’s Design/UI and Mobile perspectives 
d. Including the channels of your water pumps, departments.  
e. To better serve the needs of your Employees.  

 
 

Responsibilities of the Parties 
To ensure success of the project, and minimal time investment of your employees, please find below our proposed outline of 
responsibilities that we have for this project. Keep in mind that the roles and responsibilities outline below are to be used as 
general guidelines.  
 

Oxcyon Responsibilities: 
Development 

1.) To provide a centralized, modular framework for content to be managed for the new portal or site(s), to 
increase efficiency and re-use of data, centered around our entire Module Gallery. 

2.) To implement your Responsive, mobile friendly brand/design for both your site and your  
3.) To cooperatively handshake with any other provider (data in or out) that you will need to use for other 

initiatives.  
4.) To bring your data from its current location (file folders, or databases) into Centralpoint© utilizing our Data 

Transfer utilities (FYI- We are the only vendor in our space with these tools, and without them, migration 
would be miserable). 

Consulting:  
1.) To keep your team abreast of new technologies and methods in which to manage their content easier and in a 

way that will add value to the existing online initiatives.  
2.) To provide a guideline of taxonomy and types which will ultimately lead to less work to maintain their web 

initiatives  
3.) Provide a professional, and creative design strategy that can easily be manage by in-house staff moving 

forward 
 

Support/Maintenance: 
1.) Be available to provide necessary support to your web staff M-F, 8:00am-5:00pm eastern to ensure the content 

contributors are familiar with the use of the Centralpoint© toolset. 
2.) To provide a stream of enhancements to ensure that the technology is kept up to date 

 
Wes’s Responsibilities: 

1.) Submitting any issue (Question, problem or other) into our Online Issue Management System (link here). Some 
clients do not like the Issue Management system, I must confess. It is the only way for us to keep track of your 
documented requests, prove our response time to these requests….and at the end of the day, it ensures for both of 
us that no details get lost. There is a lot of information to pass back and forth, and our policy prohibits work to be 
done, unless an issue has been put in. We set up all of the initial issues (for you) to collect data, and drive the build, 
but beyond the deliverable, if you have a question, problem, anything, you must use the issue management system.  

2.) Designating a singular ‘lead’ for the project. We understand that there are a few members involved in the web 
initiative, and would like to request one singular point of contact that is empowered to make decisions and authorize 
work to be done 

3.) Naming Conventions/Taxonomy lists: We will be asking for definitions of content types that may have not been 
previously considered. As much thought that can be placed on this today will ultimately save everyone a lot of work 
in the future. Conversely, this investment does not have to consider ‘all’ possibilities before we get started as the 
“types” and “taxonomies” will be able to be added, amended, etc. in the future. 

4.) Sitemap/Structure: We request that your team put together a site map for your web site so our team can implement 
it into Centralpoint©.  



 
 

Page 10  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

5.) Data Migration Format expectations: We request that your team provide to us as much data as your team 
requires to be moved into the Centralpoint© system. Ideally, we like to receive whatever information you may have in 
Microsoft SQL format or Microsoft Access. We cannot handle MySQL databases, however. 

 
 

Communication & Administrative Remedy 
Good communication between Oxcyon and you is essential toward a successful project outcome. We encourage our clients to 
utilize our Online Issue Management system, throughout the entire project lifecycle in order to make sure we can both audit all 
requests you have made; including our responses to each item.  
 
Many new clients may object to using an Online Issue Management System (ticketing system), but it is the only way to make sure 
no request is misunderstood, leaving a full audit trail of your needs, and our responsiveness to them. Of course, we will be 
speaking to you on the phone, throughout this project (likely weekly) and recording each web conference. The Oxcyon Issue 
Management System is available to you and your staff 24/7, and can be accessed here: http://issuemanager.Oxcyon.com/ You 
will be given a username and password to log in, and register any issue online.  
 
Oxcyon believes that this is the cornerstone of our relationship with you and asks that you feel comfortable contacting us with 
anything that you feel we should know. There is no such thing as too much information when it comes to understanding your 
account. Based on the research we have done, most relationships between Palmdale Water District’s and their web developers 
break down in the area of communication -- which is why we place a lot of importance on it. 
 
More importantly, is the need to gather information from you ‘if’ something isn’t going the way you expect it to. If we do something 
with the site that you do not agree with, or are not pleased with, we strongly encourage you to contact us. It is important for us to 
fix your problem. 

Administrative Remedy Recommend Order and Process  

A.) All issues/tasks/questions must FIRST be entered into our Online Task Management System 
B.) Response time is measured in hours or minutes; The bulk of questions or tasks are answered or completed with 48 

hours (two business days). Some will take longer due to being more complex. 
C.) If the issue is an emergency (defined as site down, or non-functional section of your site) or if your low priority issue has 

been in the system beyond 7 days, you are free to call on the status of the issue. The following outlines your 
administrative remedy and expected response times: 

 
1.) Joe Frey, Your Project Manager  Direct Phone: 440.243.1772   

Email: jfrey@Oxcyon.com 
(If no reply via email or phone within 24 hours from me, then call #2 on your list)) 

 
2.) Kevin Michnicki, account manager   Direct Phone: 440.239.8631    
       Email: kmichnicki@oxcyon.com  
 
This administrative remedy contact list will ensure that no problem will go unresolved or addressed beyond 4 days, in the worst-
case scenario. 
 
1.) Bret Allison, analyst  Direct Phone:  440-239-8622 

Email: ballison@Oxcyon.com 
 
2.) John Radvansky, assistant analyst Direct Phone:  440-243-6617 
 Email:   john.radvansky@Oxcyon.com 
 
3.) Vlad Gantman, development leader Direct Phone:  440-891-6082 
 Email:  vgantman@Oxcyon.com 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 11  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
Training  
 
Getting Started: Competency Assessment  
Oxcyon’s competency assessment helps customers by assessing which Centralpoint© skills are required for your online projects. 
We then scope the training needs for your entire team. Finally, we recommend a path for getting each person enabled at the right 
time during the project implementation. Sometimes we train IT on advanced methods, sometimes it is merely to train users on how 
to enter in content. Training is unique for each client using Centralpoint.  
 
Oxcyon training is designed to provide your members with the knowledge and skills needed to be successful.  Oxcyon believes in a: 
”Train the Trainer” approach which allows us to purge necessary training tips and skills to ensure everyone has a touch point of 
help within Oxcyon, and within your own organization. Centralpoint© is developed around ordinary users, and hence, little training is 
required. If you are eager to get started now, you can access many ‘Deep Dive’ Training (Narrated) Videos on our website, which 
can be found here: https://oxcyon.com/centralpoint-dxp/deep-dive-videos 
 
Training is typically done in one hour GoToMeeting sessions so what has been learned can be absorbed. These training 
sessions are also recorded and sent to the Palmdale Water District’s so they can go back and review any of the training at a 
later date. We have found that sessions longer than one hour do not allow Palmdale Water District’s to retain what has been 
learned. Long training sessions overload Palmdale Water District’s and retention is lessened. We also train the Palmdale 
Water District’s on their new site so the training is relevant to the project at hand.  

 
Meet Your Implementation Team  
The production management team assigned to your account would consist of approximately 8 individuals. It would be led by a 
Production manager that will be your primary point of contact for the project. Under their direction would be a team of analysts, 
database engineers, programmers, designers, and QC specialists. A typical team would look like this: 
 
Production Manager - Our production managers have multiple years of experience with dealing with large organization and small 
systems (with multiple microsites) They are in charge of managing the production and development of our Palmdale Water District’s 
projects, keeping deployment on time, on target, and on budget. They are accustomed to managing large Centralpoint© installations 
that cover multiple online properties and installations.  
 
Senior Analyst Team Leader- Oversee the team of analysts at Oxcyon, who work in concert with our production/development 
team. This group is responsible for the initial site design and multimedia services that Oxcyon provides to Palmdale Water District’s 
team.  
 
Senior Database Engineer – they will oversee our developers and database-engineering teams. These teams are responsible for 
the development of Centralpoint© data warehousing and migration tools, as well as the custom development of our Palmdale Water 
District’s' unique data-warehousing projects. They also are involved in things like the AJAX, jQuery, and XML research, contributing 
to our continual product development. 

 
Pre and Post launch; Palmdale Water District’s will have 24/7 access to Oxcyon’s Online Issue Management system for any and 
all questions, concerns, request for additional functionality, fixes etc. The Production manager will remain your production manager 
but day to day issues will be handled through a Sr. Analyst who will know the site inside and out. Less is better in this scenario, we 
have found that having a single point of contact provides faster resolution to issues that a Palmdale Water District may experience 
post launch, because you can watch any issue move throughout our departments in issue manager (via email) you will never be left 
in the dark wondering where an issue stands and who’s court is it in. Palmdale Water District’s will love the fact that they don’t even 
have to pick up the phone or email to find out where things stand, saving time and aggravation for everyone involved in the project.  

 
If you would like to contact me for more information about your project, please email me at jfrey@Oxcyon.com.I look forward 
to working with you and the entire staff at Palmdale Water District’s! 

 
Sincerely,  

 
Joe Frey 
Production Manager  
|jfrey@oxcyon.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 12  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

Service Level Agreement - Expectations of Response Time(s) from Oxcyon 
 

Issue Response Time(s): Critical Issues will offer a maximum of 4-hour guarantee response. Critical issues will be defined as 
any issue which would cause site downage. All other issues will offer a maximum of next business day response. 

 
Basic Support: Basic support will include: Installation of the Centralpoint© application, training on the use of the Centralpoint© 
application, stream of enhancements, documentation, bug fixes, upgrades to any available new release(s) of the Product, and any 
repair necessary to guarantee the Products are functional and successfully operational. This support will include phone support 
(M-F, 8:00-5:00pm, EST), access to Oxcyon Issue Management System (to receive, track and report on issues submitted from 
Palmdale Water District’s on a daily basis) and reporting. Basic support will cover the functionality and training of Centralpoint© 
MMC and Palmdale Water District’s Console application(s) and those modules which are initially delivered by Oxcyon to Palmdale 
Water District’s and considered “Out-of-the-Box.” There will be no limit to the amount of basic support provided to Palmdale Water 
District’s to ensure the Products are operational and trouble-free. You will be required to post your Issue Online via the (click) 
Oxcyon Online Issue Management System. (We like to avoid transposing your thoughts, which could lead to misinterpretation). 
 
Enhanced Support: Enhanced Support is defined as any additional customization required toward the development, 
programming, enhancement, design, testing, and discussion of custom modules. Enhanced support will also include any 
enhancements requested to the Products (changes to “Out-of-the-Box” modules) which may be made in conjunction with the 
Palmdale Water District’s initiatives. In the event you require Oxcyon to perform customizations to existing modules, or requests 
new modules be developed, Oxcyon will use the following discounted support fee schedule: 
 
                           Custom Work (There will be no hourly charges for work covered in this proposal)   
 

                     11-15 Hours per month:   $125.00 
                      15-20 Hours per month:   $120.00  
                      21-40 Hours per month:   $115.00 
                      41-60 Hours per month:   $110.00 
                          60+ Hours per month:                 $105.00 
 

Oxcyon’s Service Level Metrics below involves the activities and services covered by the SLA (Service Level Agreement) and 
must be built around measurable events. These measurable events ensure the SLA is meeting performance standards and that 
the PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT’s expectations are being met. This chart will help set appropriate expectations for our 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICTs. 
 

Metric Description Target 
First Contact The length of time it takes for an agent to respond to 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT from a first contact. Phone,
email, or internet.

Within Four Hours that 
Same Business Day 

Callback Time The length of time it takes for an agent to get back to 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT for a status of follow-up-

work. Phone, email, or internet.

Within the Next Business 
Day 

Resolution Time Involves the time based on a predetermined priority. 
Priorities are based on factors such as whether a problem 

affects one user or multiple users, the location of users and 
the system affected.

4 hours to 5 business 
days 

Response Time The time between identifying a problem and the time it 
takes for technical support to take action.

4 hours to 5 business 
days 

Restore Time The time required before a problem is identified as 
temporarily resolved; the restoration may be a temporary 

solution.

4 hours to 5 business 
days 

Total Resolution 
Time 

The time required to identify, diagnose, restore, and have 
permanent resolution to the problem.

4 hours to 5 business 
days 

Moves, Adds, 
Changes 

The average number of business days from work order to 
completion.

3 to 5 business days 

Contribution to 
Knowledge 

Management 

Ensure that the Oxcyon service desk agents are partnering 
with PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT desk agents to create 

and manage knowledge content of any problem, work-
around, and history.

Document cases on a 
monthly bases into a 
shared knowledge 

database 

URGENT  Any issue which is urgent in nature, or is based on 
downage of site or server in any way

Immediate- Cell Phone 
Access provided 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 13  -CONFIDENTIAL                                              Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan                                                                       
 

 
 
Projected Milestones & Timeline of the PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT Project: 
 

1.) Kick Off- Initial meeting to collect project specifications & notes 
2.) Design & UI of Project- Modification of CSS for Desktop/Mobile 

 

                                           
3.) Development of Taxonomy, Audiences Channels, Departments, Water, HR, Financial Data & Roles. 
4.) Initialize SSO (If applicable) for Employee Log in (Does not pertain to public site projects only)   
5.) Customization of UI  
6.) Data Migration of Palmdale’s Portal Legacy Data 

a. You will need to provide us with file (locations), actual files, or data sets for us to do this 
i. Common formats include XLS, Access (MDB), CSV, or Zipped Files 
ii. Contact us should you need to FTP anything to us  

7.) Integration of Palmdale’s Portal with (back office) third party systems 
a. This typically includes 

i. AD/Active Directory, LDAP, SAML, oAuth, and others 
8.) QC & Testing of Palmdale’s Portal 
9.) Launch of Palmdale’s Portal 

 
Proposed Timeline of the Palmdale’s Portal Project 
 
Times below are approximate estimations contingent upon our receipt of data and assets by Palmdale Water District  
 

 Kick Off Meeting: Within 10 Days of Receipt of Contract/Deposit 
 Begin site build: Approximately 10 days from kick off  
 End Site build: Approximately 90 Days from kick off 
 Begin Oxcyon quality control: Approximately 70 days from kick off 
 End Oxcyon quality control Approximately 85 days from kick off 
 Begin Palmdale Water District’s internal quality control Approximately 80 days from kick off 
 End, Palmdale Water Districts internal quality control Approximately 85 days from kick off 
 Live launch/DNS switch: Approximately 90 Days from kick off meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 14  -CONFIDENTIAL      Oxcyon, Inc. Proposal/SLA/Project Plan   



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

G
ar

tn
er

‘s 
M

ag
ic

 Q
ua

dr
an

t f
or

 D
ig

ita
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
Pl

at
fo

rm
s (

DX
P)

A 
Di

gi
ta

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Pl
at

fo
rm

 (D
XP

)c
on

so
lid

at
es

 d
isp

ar
at

e,
 si

lo
ed

 d
at

a 
fo

r a
ll 

us
er

s.
 It

 s
up

po
rt

s s
ec

ur
e 

au
th

en
tic

at
io

n 
to

 fi
lte

r a
cc

es
s b

y 
ro

le
 &

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t(
s)

Co
nv

er
ts

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
to

 a
ct

io
n-

ab
le

 k
no

w
le

dg
e

or
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t v
ia

 U
se

r R
ep

or
tin

g,
Le

ar
ni

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t =
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e

Ev
er

yt
hi

ng
 is

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
an

d 
as

 it
 d

oe
s t

ho
se

 u
se

rs
N

ee
d 

to
 a

dj
us

t.

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.

Se
rv

in
g 

ov
er

 3
50

 C
lie

nt
s f

or
 2

0 
ye

ar
s



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

Y
ou

r 
da

ta

D
at

a 
T

ra
n

sf
er

s 
-

F
ee

d

A 
Di

gi
ta

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Pl
at

fo
rm

 fo
r a

ll 
U

se
rs

 b
y 

th
ei

r A
ud

ie
nc

e(
s)

 &
 R

ol
e(

s)

Fi
lte

rin
g 

by
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t(
s)

, O
ffi

ce
s 

&
 R

ol
e(

s)

M
ob

ile
Di

gi
ta

l S
ig

na
ge

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

O
nt

ol
og

ie
s f

or
 y

ou
r E

nt
er

pr
ise

/A
I

Ea
ch

 re
co

rd
 ta

gg
ed

 to
M

ul
tip

le
 Ta

xo
no

m
ie

s,
 

Au
di

en
ce

s A
N

D 
Ro

le
s,

 y
ie

ld
in

g 
a 

sin
gu

la
r s

ou
rc

e 
of

 tr
ut

h 
fo

r 
al

l u
se

rs

…
bu

t w
ho

 c
an

 re
al

ly
 d

o 
it?

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

Y
ou

r 
da

ta

D
at

a 
T

ra
n

sf
er

s 
-

F
ee

d

Ce
nt

ra
lp

oi
nt

 le
ve

ra
ge

s R
ob

ot
ic

 P
ro

ce
ss

 A
ut

om
at

io
n 

(R
PA

) t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

ru
le

s

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

Au
to

 a
pp

ly
 m

et
ad

at
a 

&
 c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
di

sp
ar

at
e,

 si
lo

ed
 d

at
a

C
on

ta
ct

: J
am

es
 V

en
us

 V
P

 S
al

es
, D

: 4
40

.2
39

.8
61

9 
C

: 4
40

.2
25

.9
02

0 
jv

en
us

@
O

xc
yo

n.
co

m



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

Cr
ea

tin
g 

ru
le

s i
n 

Da
ta

 C
le

an
er

 to
 lo

ok
 fo

r n
ew

 c
on

di
tio

ns Ru
le

s E
xa

m
pl

e:
1.

) C
H

N
=C

hi
na

2.
) H

on
g 

Ko
ng

=C
hi

na
3.

) X
i J

in
pi

ng
=C

hi
na

4.
) C

hi
ne

se
=C

hi
na

5.
) P

.R
.O

.C
. =

Ch
in

a
6.

) I
SO

 3
16

6-
2:

CN
= 

Ch
in

a

Ru
le

s E
xa

m
pl

e:
1.

) C
H

N
=C

hi
na

2.
) H

on
g 

Ko
ng

=C
hi

na
3.

) X
i J

in
pi

ng
=C

hi
na

4.
) C

hi
ne

se
=C

hi
na

5.
) P

.R
.O

.C
. =

Ch
in

a
6.

) I
SO

 3
16

6-
2:

CN
= 

Ch
in

a

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

O
ut

bo
un

d 
De

liv
er

y 
-P

er
so

na
liz

ed
 A

le
rt

s a
s i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

In
bo

un
d 

–
Fo

rm
s,

 L
ea

rn
in

g,
 T

as
ks

, &
 D

oc
um

en
t c

re
at

io
n

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

It 
be

co
m

es
 K

no
w

le
dg

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t v
ia

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 le

ar
ni

ng

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

G
am

ifi
ca

tio
n 

&
 L

iv
e 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 a
ll 

us
er

s

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

M
ul

ti 
Te

na
nc

y 
Su

pp
or

t (
Ei

th
er

 O
n 

Pr
em

ise
 o

r C
lo

ud
)

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t M
M

C
 S

up
po

rt
s 

an
y 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 b

ra
nd

 
‘P

or
ta

ls
’. 

E
ac

h 
po

rt
al

, 
in

 tu
rn

, 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

ny
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
m

ic
ro

 o
r 

ch
an

ne
l s

ite
s 

(t
ie

re
d 

by
 r

eg
io

n)
.

Ce
nt

ra
lp

oi
nt

 S
up

po
rt

s M
ul

ti-
Te

na
nc

y

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

01

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

02

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

03

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

04

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

M
od

ul
ar

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
= 

Sh
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

F
un

ct
io

ns
 (

or
 M

od
ul

es
) 

ca
n 

be
 a

ct
iv

at
ed

 a
s 

ea
ch

 
br

an
d’

s 
di

gi
ta

l r
oa

dm
ap

 
ev

ol
ve

s

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

Ce
nt

ra
lp

oi
nt

 S
up

po
rt

s L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

an
 b

e 
sy

nc
hr

on
iz

ed
 to

 S
ta

gi
ng

O
nc

e 
te

st
ed

 in
 s

ta
gi

ng
 it

 c
an

 
be

 s
yn

ch
ro

ni
ze

d 
do

w
n 

to
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

st
an

ce
s

A
ll 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

se
gr

eg
at

ed
 fr

om
 O

xc
yo

n’
s 

bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
(p

ul
l) 

up
da

te
s,

 
al

lo
w

in
g 

us
 b

ot
h 

to
 s

ta
y 

up
 

to
 d

at
e 

in
 h

ar
m

on
y

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



Y
O

U
R

 L
O

G
O

W
ha

t m
ak

es
 u

p 
a 

Di
gi

ta
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
Pl

at
fo

rm
?

C
en

tr
al

po
in

t b
y 

O
xc

yo
n 

In
c.



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023 January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. (GENERAL 
COUNSEL TRINDLE)  

To assist in the Board’s discussion on this item, attached is a copy of Article 4 of the 
District’s Rules and Regulations, Section 4.05: Officers of the Board and Section 4.06: 
Duties and Obligations of the Officers of the Board.  

Supporting Documents: 

 Rules and Regulations Article 4 Sections 4.05 and 4.06

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1







P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023 January 9, 2022 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Peter Thompson II, Resource and Analytics Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
APPROVAL OF THE EMERGENCY RESPONSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION 
AND ANTELOPE VALLEY MUTUAL WATER COMPANIES. (NO BUDGET 
IMPACT – RESOURCE AND ANALYTICS DIRECTOR/AVSWCA GENERAL 
MANAGER THOMPSON II) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the approval of the Emergency Response Agreement (Agreement) between the 
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (Association) and the Antelope Valley mutual 
water companies.  

Background: 

The Commissioners of the Association Board wished to provide greater water security within the 
Antelope Valley and, to that end, directed staff to develop a path for emergency response 
coordination for mutual companies within our collective service areas. Following an unsuccessful 
attempt to  to get the mutual water companies included in the Antelope Valley Mutual Response 
Agreement(AVMRA), the Association Board directed staff to develop an Agreement that could be 
executed between the member agencies of the Association and the Antelope Valley mutual water 
companies. The AVMRA was utilzed as a template for this draft agreement. Feedback from the 
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority,  several mutual water 
companies, and the Associations’s attorney have shaped this Agreement.   This Agreement was 
approved for presentation to the Association’s individual agencies’ Boards at the Association 
meeting held on December 9, 2022.  This Agreement was approved by the Antelope Valley East 
Kern Water Agency at their meeting held on December 20, 2022. 

Elements and Impacts of Agreement: 

 One way agreement providing a structure for the Association agencies to assist mutual water
companies in an emergency.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager     -2-     January 2, 2023 

 Emergency response is optional not obligatory.

 The liability insurance requirement was set at $1,000,000 in the Agreement. This is the key
element that will allow mutual water companies to sign on.

 Once approved by some or all of the Association agencies, Association staff can distribute the
Agreement to mutual water companies for their approvals.

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 5 – Regional Leadership.  

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

No budget impact. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Emergency Response Agreement between the Association and AV Mutual Water Companies



13030.0001/2746276v3

Emergency Response Agreement 
Between the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association 

and Antelope Valley Mutual Water Companies 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by the member agencies of the Antelope Valley State Water 
Contractors Association (Association), as listed on Exhibit A hereto, which have adopted and signed this 
Agreement to provide emergency assistance to mutual water companies located within their shared 
service areas and provides terms for the reimbursement for equipment, supplies and personnel made 
available on an emergency basis as specified herein. Mutual Water Companies that desire to seek 
emergency aid from the members agencies of the Association must meet the qualifications of the 
agreement and become signatories to it.  

Said agencies are individually referred to herein as an “Association Agency.”  Mutual Water Companies 
who sign the Agreement are individually referred to herein as “Requestor Agency.”  

In consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Association Agencies agree 
to provide assistance to Requestor Agencies in times of emergency as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
PURPOSE 

Recognizing the importance of functioning water systems within the Antelope Valley and that 
emergencies may require assistance in the form of personnel, equipment, and supplies in excess of an 
individual mutual water company’s resources, the Association Agencies hereby establish a regional 
program for emergency aid, response, and assistance. Through this Emergency Response Program (the 
“Program”), Association Agencies may individually or in coordination respond to Requestor Agencies, 
share resources during emergencies, and assist during local emergencies, as defined herein. This 
Agreement sets forth the procedures and standards for the administration of the Program among the 
parties.  

ARTICLE II. 
DEFINITIONS 

A. Authorized Official – An employee or officer of an Association or Requestor Agency who is 
authorized to do any of the following: 
1. Request assistance;
2. Offer assistance;
3. Refuse to offer assistance or
4. Withdraw assistance under this agreement.

B. Emergency – A natural or human caused event or circumstance causing, or imminently 
threatening to cause, impact to the operations of a Member Agency, loss of life, injury to person 
or property, human suffering, or financial loss, and includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, 
severe weather, earthquake, civil disturbance, riot, explosion, drought, volcanic activity, spills or 
releases of oil or hazardous materials, contamination, utility or transportation emergencies, 
disease, blight, infestation, intentional acts, sabotage, declaration of war, or other condition 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

which will, or is likely to, require a greater level of personnel, equipment, facilities and services 
than a Member Agency can provide on its own, and thus will require mutual assistance. 
 

C. Members or Member Agencies – Any Association Agency or public or private Requestor Agency 
that manifests intent to participate in the Program by executing this Agreement. 
 

1. Requesting Member – A Requestor Agency that requests aid or assistance under the Program. 

 

2. Responding Member – An Association Agency that responds to a request for aid or assistance 
under the Program. 

 
3. Non-Responding Member – An Association Agency that does not provide aid or assistance 

during a Period of Assistance under the Program. 
 

D. Confidential Information – Any document shared with any signatory of this Agreement that is 

marked confidential, including but not limited to, any map, report, notes, papers, opinion, or e-

mail which relates to the system vulnerabilities of a Member Agency. 

 

E. Period of Assistance – A specified period of time when a Responding Member assists a Requesting 

Member. The period commences when personnel, equipment, or supplies depart from 

Responding Member’s facility and ends when the resources return to their facility (portal to 

portal). All protections identified in this Agreement apply during this period. The specified Period 

of Assistance may occur during response to or recovery from an Emergency, as previously defined, 

or during an Outage, as defined herein. 

 

F.  National Incident Management System (NIMS) – A national, standardized approach to incident 

management and response that sets uniform processes and procedures for emergency response 

operations. 

 

G. Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) – A standardized approach to field 

command and jurisdictional management and response set forth by State of California Code of 

Regulations for multi-agency or multijurisdictional response to an emergency. 

 

H. Outage – A period of time where a Member’s utility supply is interrupted to the extent that the 
interruption jeopardizes the health and safety of the Members’ customers/constituents. An 
Outage is “planned” when the Member is given at least three (3) days prior notice of the 
interruption in supply. An Outage is “unplanned” when the Outage occurs without at least three 
(3) days prior notice of the interruption in supply, including when the Outage occurs 
unexpectedly. 
 

ARTICLE III. 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
The Program shall be administered through the Association and the Association Resource Manager shall 
serve as the Coordinator (the “Coordinator”). 
 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

The Coordinator shall serve as the point of contact for collecting and distributing the signed Agreements 
and maintaining the list of Authorized Officials. The Coordinator shall schedule at least one annual 
meeting for the member agencies to review the Program and any actions previously taken pursuant to 
the Program.  
 

ARTICLE IV. 
PROCEDURES 

 
A. Procedures for the Program will be developed in alignment with the with the Antelope Valley 

Mutual Response Agreement. These procedures shall be consistent with the Standardized 
Emergency Management System (SEMS), the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and 
this Agreement. These procedures shall be reviewed at least annually and updated as needed by 
the Coordinator. 
 

B. Requests for emergency assistance or assistance with any Outage under this Agreement shall be 
directed to the appropriate Authorized Official(s) from the list of Members. 

 
ARTICLE V. 

REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE 
 
In general, assistance will be in the form of resources, such as equipment, supplemental water supplies, 
other supplies, and personnel. Assistance shall be given only when a Responding Member determines that 
its own needs can be met while rendering assistance. The execution of this Agreement shall not create 
any duty to respond on the part of any party hereto. A potential Responding Member shall not be held 
liable for failing to provide assistance. A potential Responding Member has the absolute discretion to 
decline to provide any requested assistance. 
 

A. Responsibility – Members provide an Authorized Official’s and at least one alternate’s, contact 
information including 24-hour access, and maintain resource information that may be available 
from the agency for mutual aid and assistance response. Such contact information shall be 
updated annually or when changes occur and be promptly provided to the Coordinator. 
 

B. Member Request – In the event of an Emergency or Outage (planned or unplanned), a Member’s 
Authorized Official may request mutual aid and assistance from a participating Member. Requests 
for assistance can be made orally or in writing. When made orally, the request for personnel, 
equipment, supplemental water supplies and other supplies shall be memorialized in writing as 
soon as practicable. Requests for assistance shall be directed to the Authorized Official of the 
participating Member. Specific protocols for requesting aid shall be provided in the required 
procedures to be established by the committee pursuant to Article IV hereof. 

 
C. Response to a Request for Assistance – Members are not obligated to respond to a Requesting 

Member’s request. After a Member receives a request for assistance, that Member’s Authorized 
Official evaluates whether to respond, whether resources are available to respond, or if other 
circumstances would hinder response. Following the evaluation, that Member’s Authorized 
Representative shall inform, as soon as possible, the Requesting Member whether that Member 
will respond. If the Member is willing and able to provide assistance, the Member shall inform the 
Requesting Member about the type of available resources and the approximate arrival time of 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

such assistance. If a Member determines it cannot respond to a request for assistance, that 
Member shall not be responsible for any consequences associated with its failure to respond. 
 

D. Discretion of Responding Member’s Authorized Official – Execution of this Agreement does not 
create any duty for a Responding Member to respond to a request for assistance. When a 
Responding Member receives a request for assistance, the Authorized Official shall have sole and 
absolute discretion as to whether or not to respond, or the availability of resources to be used in 
such response. An Authorized Official’s decisions on the availability of resources shall be final. 
 

ARTICLE VI. 
RESPONSE COORDINATION 

 
When providing assistance under this Agreement, the Requesting Member and Responding Member shall 
be organized and shall function under the Standard Emergency Management System and National 
Incident Management System protocols and procedures. 
 

A. Personnel – Responding Member retains the right to identify the specific employees to be 
provided to a Requesting Member and the resources that are available.  
 

B. Control – While employees so provided may be under the supervision of the Responding Member, 
the Responding Member’s employees come under the direction and control of the Requesting 
Member, consistent with the NIMS Incident Command System to address the needs identified by 
the Requesting Member. The Requesting Member’s Authorized Official shall coordinate response 
activities with the designated supervisor of the Responding Member(s). Whenever practical, 
Responding Member personnel must be self-sufficient for up to 72 hours. The Responding 
Member’s designated supervisor(s) must keep accurate records of work performed by 
Responding Member’s personnel during the specified Period of Assistance. 

 
C. Food and shelter – When possible, the Requesting Member shall supply reasonable food and 

shelter for Responding Member personnel. If the Requesting Member is unable to provide food 
and shelter for Responding Member personnel, the Responding Member’s designated supervisor 
is authorized to secure the resources necessary to meet the needs of its personnel. Except as 
provided below, the cost for such resources must not exceed the state per diem rates for that 
area. To the extent food and shelter costs exceed the state per diem rates for the area, the 
Responding Member must demonstrate that the additional costs were reasonable and necessary 
under the circumstances. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the Requesting Member remains 
responsible for reimbursing the Responding Member for all reasonable and necessary costs 
associated with providing food and shelter, if such resources are not provided. 

 
D. Communication – The Requesting Member shall provide Responding Member personnel with 

radio equipment as available, or radio frequency information to program existing radios, in order 
to facilitate communications with local responders and utility personnel. 

 
E. Status – Unless otherwise provided by law, the Responding Member’s officers and employees 

retain the same privileges, immunities, rights, duties, and benefits as provided in their respective 
jurisdictions; and shall remain officers and employees, as applicable, of the Responding Member. 
 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

F. Licenses and Permits – To the extent permitted by law, Responding Member personnel that hold 
licenses, certificates, or permits evidencing professional, mechanical, or other skills shall be 
allowed to carry out activities and tasks relevant and related to their respective credentials during 
the specified Period of Assistance. 
 

G. Right to Withdraw Resources – The Responding Member’s Authorized Official retains the right to 
withdraw some or all of its resources at any time for any reason in the Responding Member’s sole 
and absolute discretion. Notice of intention to withdraw must by communicated to the 
Requesting Member’s Authorized Official as soon as is practicable under the circumstances. 
 

ARTICLE VII. 
COST REIMBURSEMENT 

 
Unless otherwise mutually agreed in whole or in part by both parties, the Requesting Member shall 
reimburse the Responding Member for each of the following categories of costs incurred while providing 
aid and assistance during the specified Period of Assistance. 
 

A. Personnel – Responding Member(s) will make such employees as are willing to participate 
available to Requesting Member at Requesting Member’s expense equal to any Responding 
Member’s full cost, i.e., equal to the employee’s applicable salary or hourly wage, plus fringe 
benefits and overhead, and consistent with Responding Member’s collective bargaining 
agreements, if applicable, or other conditions of employment. All costs incurred for work 
performed during the specified Period of Assistance will be included. The Requesting Member 
shall be responsible for all direct and indirect labor costs. 
 

B. Equipment – Use of equipment, such as construction equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps and 
generators, shall be at a Responding Member’s current equipment rate and subject to the 
following conditions: The Requesting Member shall reimburse the Responding Member for the 
use of equipment during the specified Period of Assistance, including, but not limited to, 
reasonable rental rates, all fuel, lubrication, maintenance, transportation, and loading/unloading 
of loaned equipment. All equipment shall be returned to the Responding Member as soon as is 
practicable and reasonable under the circumstances. 

 
1. At the option of Responding Member, equipment may be provided with an operator. 

 
2. Equipment shall be returned to Responding Member within 24 hours after receipt of an oral 

or written request for return. 
 

3. During the Period of Assistance, Requesting Member shall, at its own expense, supply all fuel, 
lubrication, and maintenance for furnished equipment; provided that Requesting Member 
shall obtain Responding Member’s consent before performing any such maintenance. 

 
4. Responding Member’s cost related to the transportation, handling and loading/unloading of 

equipment shall be chargeable to Requesting Member. 
 

5. In the event equipment is damaged while being dispatched to Requesting Member, or while 
in the custody and use of Requesting Member, Requesting Member shall reimburse 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

Responding Member for the reasonable cost of repairing said damaged equipment. If the 
equipment cannot be repaired, then Requesting Member shall reimburse Responding 
Member for the reasonable cost of replacing such equipment with equipment that is of at 
least equal capability as determined by the Responding Member. If Responding Member must 
lease a piece of equipment while Responding Member equipment is being repaired or 
replaced, Requesting Member shall reimburse Responding Member for such reasonable lease 
costs. 

 

C. Materials and Supplies – The Requesting Member must reimburse the Responding Member in 
kind or at actual replacement cost, plus handling charges, for use of expendable or non-returnable 
supplies. The Responding Member must not charge direct fees or rental charges to the Requesting 
Member for other supplies and reusable items that are returned to the Responding Member in a 
clean, damage-free condition. Reusable supplies that are returned to the Responding Member 
with damage must be treated as expendable supplies for purposes of cost reimbursement. 
 

D. Supplemental Water Supplies – The Responding Member will provide the Requesting Member 
with a bill showing the amount of water delivered to the Requesting Member. Water will be billed 
at the highest rate incurred for imported water by the Responding Member, or as the Responding 
Member may otherwise agree. 

 
E. Payment Period – The Responding Member must provide an itemized bill to the Requesting 

Member for all expenses incurred by the Responding Member while providing assistance under 
this Agreement. The Responding Member must send the itemized bill not later than ninety (90) 
days following the end of the Period of Assistance. The Responding Member may request 
additional periods of time within which to submit the itemized bill and Requesting Member shall 
not unreasonably withhold consent to such request. The Requesting Member must pay the bill 
within 60 days following the billing date. The Requesting Member may request additional periods 
of time within which to pay the itemized bill and Responding Member shall not unreasonably 
withhold consent to such request, provided, however, that all payment shall occur not later than 
six months after the date a final itemized bill is submitted to the Requesting Member. 
 

F. Records – Each Requesting Member and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to 
a Responding Member’s books, documents, notes, reports, papers, and records which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of a cost bill or making a 
financial, maintenance or regulatory audit. To the extent it deems necessary, each Responding 
Member and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to a Requesting Member’s 
books, documents, notes, reports, papers, and records which are directly pertinent to this 
Agreement. Any audit shall occur during normal business hours upon giving reasonable notice to 
the Responding Member of the intent to conduct such an audit. In the event of such an audit, the 
employees of Responding Member shall comply with the reasonable requests of the Requesting 
Member, its representatives, and agents. Such records shall be maintained for at least three (3) 
years or longer where required by law and as needed for federal reimbursement practices. 

 

 

 

 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

ARTICLE VIII. 
ARBITRATION 

 
If any controversy or claim arises out of, or relates to, the Agreement, including, but not limited to an 
alleged breach of the Agreement, the disputing Members shall first attempt in good faith to resolve the 
dispute by negotiation, followed by confidential mediation and finally shall be settled by binding 
arbitration in accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Judgment on the award 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. 
 

ARTICLE IX. 
REQUESTING MEMBER’S DUTY TO INDEMNIFY 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, and subject to Article X, Requesting Member shall assume 
the defense of, fully indemnify and hold harmless Responding Member, its Directors, elected officials, 
officers, employees and agents (collectively, for purposes of this Article, “Responding Member”), from all 
claims, loss, damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature and description, including reasonable 
attorney’s and expert’s fees, incurred to the extent directly or indirectly arising from the Emergency 
and/or aid and assistance provided hereunder during the Period of Assistance, including, but not limited 
to, negligent or wrongful use of equipment, supplies or personnel provided to Requesting Member except 
where caused by the sole, active negligence or willful misconduct of Responding Member. 
 

ARTICLE X. 
SIGNATORY INDEMNIFICATION 

 
In the event of a liability, claim, demand, action or proceeding, of whatever kind or nature arising out of 
the rendering of assistance through the Agreement, the Requesting Member agrees to indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless all Members whose only involvement is the execution and approval of this Agreement, 
in the transaction or occurrence which is the subject of such claim, action, demand or other proceeding. 
Such indemnification shall include indemnity for all claims, demands, liability, damages, and costs, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs of defense, for injury, property damage and worker’s 
compensation. 
 

ARTICLE XI. 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION CLAIMS 

 
The Responding Member is responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and administering 
worker’s compensation for its employees, provided, however, that the Requesting Member shall be 
responsible for reimbursing any amounts paid or due as benefits to Responding Member’s employees due 
to personal injury or death occurring during the Period of Assistance. The Requesting Member is 
responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and administering worker’s compensation for 
its employees. 
 

ARTICLE XII. 
NOTICE 

 
Each party hereto shall give to the others prompt and timely written notice of any claim made or any suit 
instituted coming to its knowledge, which in any way, directly or indirectly, contingently or otherwise, 
affects or might affect them, and each Member shall have the right to participate in the defense of the 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

same, as it considers necessary to protect its own interest, subject to the indemnification, hold harmless 
and defense provisions set forth in Article IX. 
 

ARTICLE XIII. 
INSURANCE 

 
Each Member shall procure and maintain, at its sole and exclusive expense, insurance coverage, including 
$1,000,000 comprehensive liability, personal injury, property damage, and worker’s compensation. 

 
ARTICLE XIV. 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
To the extent allowed by law, any Member (for purposes of this Article “Receiving Party”) shall maintain 
in the strictest confidence and shall take all reasonable steps necessary to prevent the disclosure of any 
Confidential Information provided to it by another Member (for purposes of this Article, “Disclosing 
Party”) pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that the Receiving Party is required, in the opinion of its 
legal counsel, to disclose any of the Confidential Information by applicable law (including, but not limited 
to, the California Public Records Act (Cal. Govt. Code §6250 et seq.), the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act 
(Cal. Govt. Code §11120 et seq.), the Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code §54950 et seq.), and the Federal Freedom 
of Information Act), regulation or legal process, the Receiving Party will promptly notify the Disclosing 
Party so that the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy or, in its sole 
discretion, waive compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The Receiving Party will reasonably 
cooperate with the Disclosing Party to obtain such a protective order, at the sole cost and expense of the 
Disclosing Party, and, in any event, will exercise reasonable efforts to obtain reliable assurance that 
confidential treatment will be accorded any Confidential Information that is ultimately required to be 
disclosed. 
 

ARTICLE XV 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect upon the execution of the Agreement by one Association 
Agency and one Requestor Agency (2) Member Agencies. This Agreement shall take effect for a 
subsequent new party immediately upon its execution by said party. 
 

ARTICLE XVI. 
WITHDRAWAL 

 
Any party may terminate its participation in this Agreement by written notice to the Coordinator, who 
shall provide notice of withdrawal to all current Members. Withdrawal takes effect 60 days after the 
appropriate official receives notice. Withdrawal from this Agreement shall in no way affect a Requesting 
Member’s duty to reimburse a Responding Member for cost incurred during a Period of Assistance or 
indemnify any Member pursuant to Section IX and X. These duties shall survive such withdrawal. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

ARTICLE XVII. 
MODIFICATION 

 
No provision of this Agreement may be modified, altered, or rescinded by individual parties to the 
Agreement. Modifications to this Agreement require a simple majority vote of Association 
Commissioners. The Association will notify all parties of modifications to this Agreement in writing and 
those modifications shall be effective upon 60 days’ written notice to the parties. 
 

ARTICLE XVIII. 
SEVERABILITY 

 
If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or 
in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain 
the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 
 

ARTICLE XIX 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS 

 
This Agreement supersedes all prior Agreements between Members to the extent that such prior 
Agreements are inconsistent with this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE XX. 
PROHIBITION ON THIRD PARTIES AND ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS/DUTIES 

 
This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Members and no person or entity shall have any rights 
under this Agreement as a third-party beneficiary. Assignments of benefits and delegations of duties 
created by this Agreement are prohibited and any such attempted assignment or delegation shall have 
no effect. 
 

ARTICLE XXI. 
TORT CLAIMS 

 
This Agreement in no way abrogates or waives any immunity or defense available under California law. 
 

ARTICLE XXII. 
INTRASTATE AND INTERSTATE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 
To the extent practicable, Members retain the right to participate in other mutual aid and assistance 
activities, including but not limited to, those conducted under the State of California Intrastate WARN 
Mutual Aid and Assistance Program, the Interstate Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC), 
and similar programs. 
 
 
  



 

13030.0001/2746276v3 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the covenants and obligations set forth in this Agreement, the Agency 
listed here manifests its intent to be a Member Agency in the Program by executing this Agreement on 
this ___________ day of _________________ 2023. 
 
Member: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
By: _____________________________   By: ______________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________   Title: _____________________________ 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Please Print Name     Please Print Name 
 
 
       Approved as to form and legality 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
       Attorney for Agency 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Please Print Name 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023   January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Scott Rogers, Engineering Manager 

VIA: Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 
 Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT FOR LITTLEROCK DAM REMEDIATION WITH AECOM. 
$140,468.00 – NOT-TO-EXCEED – BUDGETED – BUDGET ITEM NO. 22-623 – 
ENGINEERING MANAGER ROGERS)  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to enter into a Professional Services Contract 
with AECOM for the Littlerock Dam Remediation in the not-to-exceed amount of $140,468.00. 
 
Alternative Options: 
 
The alternative is to not award the proposal. 
 
Impact of Taking No Action: 
 
The potential impact from taking no action would result in not providing a work plan to meet 
Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) requests.  
 
Background: 
 
The District’s two dams, Littlerock Dam and Harold Dam, are inspected yearly by the DSOD, 
and they provide inspection reports for repair requirements and recommendations. DSOD has 
requested the District provide a work plan for Littlerock Dam repairs to address leakage at the 
spillway due to lack of water stops, leakage into the dam bays, and clogged weep holes in the 
dam.  
 
Staff prepared an informal Request for Proposal (RFP) to invite qualified consultants with 
experience in dam remediations. The District received three proposals. The selection committee 
evaluated the proposals and selected AECOM’s proposal based on the qualifications of the firm 
and their project managers’ previous experience with Littlerock Dam.  
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



 
2 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATERA DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 
 Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager       -2-         January 2, 2023 
 
 
AECOM’s project manager was involved with the Dam’s remediation in the early 1990’s. 
AECOM teams’ experience with Littlerock Dam will bring institutional knowledge and 
continuity to this project. The firm will provide the District with a work plan for the maintenance 
and remediation of items requested to be addressed by DSOD. AECOM will also provide 
engineering plans, specifications, bidding assistance, and on-site inspection during construction.  
 
Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 
 
This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 1. Water Resource Reliability. 
 
This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 
 
Budget: 
 
This item is budgeted under WO 22-623. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 AECOM Proposal  
 



mailto:michael.forrest@aecom.com


LITTLEROCK DAM MAINTENANCE ITEMS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

PWD has requested a scope/approach and fee for a work plan for the maintenance/remediation, plans 
and specifications for the remediation, bidding assistance, and on-site inspection during construction.  
AECOM has included additional information on approach and assumptions in this Scope of Work that 
was provided by PWD, which is shown in tracked changes.   

The following Scope of Work covers required maintenance items, which include (1) leakage at the 
spillway due to the lack of water stops; (2) leakage into the dam bays; and (3) clogged weep holes in the 
dam.   

The Project will include the tasks shown below:  

• Task 100 - Project Administration/Management – project coordination/communications, quality 

control, and conducting a kickoff meeting with PWD  

• Task 200 - Site Evaluation - data review and site visit 

• Task 300 - Remediation Work Plan - development of the remediation work plan and 

coordination with DSOD 

• Task 400 - Specifications and Drawings - preparation of bid documents and coordination with 

DSOD 

• Task 500 - Construction Support - bidding phase support, preparation of construction 

documents and inspection during construction  

• Task 600 - As-built Drawings and Construction Completion Report – preparation of as-built 

drawings and construction completion report of the remediation.   

This section provides our understanding of the scope of work. 

TASK 100 - PROJECT ADMINISTRATION/MANAGEMENT 

TASK 101 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

This task will include project management for the duration of the Project including scheduling; 

invoicing; routing communications; preparing monthly Project status reports; and providing 

overall Project direction and guidance to the team. 

The total Project duration is assumed to be as shown in the attached Project Schedule.  This task 

will also include setting up the Project team with assigned roles and responsibilities, and quality 

control responsibilities.   

Deliverables for Task 101: 

Monthly invoices and concise monthly status reports 

TASK 102 – PROJECT KICK-OFF MEETING 

CONSULTANT will conduct a kick-off meeting with PWD staff at the start of the Project. During the 

kickoff meeting, the goals of the Project will be discussed, and the Project scope reviewed. 

CONSULTANT will prepare a meeting agenda to be provided for the meeting. 



Deliverables for Task 102: 

Kickoff meeting agenda and meeting minutes – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

TASK 200 – SITE EVALUATION 

TASK 201 – DATA REVIEW 

CONSULTANT will review as-built drawings, all previous inspection reports, and other PWD-

provided data sources to gain an understanding of the leakage issues both at the spillway and into 

the dam bays.  

This data review will also include a discussion with PWD on performance and operation and 

maintenance of the dam.  

Deliverables for Task 201: 

None 

TASK 202 –SITE VISIT 

CONSULTANT will conduct a site visit within four (4) calendar weeks of contract award execution, 

and two (2) calendar weeks after receipt of background data from PWD. The site visit will be 

performed by two (2) employees of the CONSULTANT and to be completed in one day. The 

purpose will be to visually inspect the leakage at the spillway and into the dam bays. 

Measurements of the leakage at both locations will be taken with a 5-gallon bucket and stopwatch 

to quantify the amount of flow occurring. Additionally, the weep holes in the dam will be visually 

inspected to assess the amount and type of clogging. 

The site visit will be attended by AECOM’s Project Manager and a qualified civil engineer.  We will 

follow PWD’s safety protocol, including confined space entry requirements into the dam bays. 

Deliverables for Task 202: 

None 

TASK 300 – REMEDIATION WORK PLAN 

Under this task CONSULTANT will develop a work plan for addressing the leakage and drainage issues for 

submittal to DSOD. 

TASK 301 –WORK PLAN 

CONSULTANT will develop a Remediation Work Plan that: 

• summarizes our findings from the site evaluation and document review;  

• identifies if any additional field inspections and/or materials testing needed to develop 

remediation specifications; 

• provides an alternatives evaluation for remediating each of the issues identified, including 

a summary of estimated cost and constructability considerations; and, 

• provides CONSULTANT’S recommendations for remediation of each of the three DSOD-

identified dam issues. 



Following the electronic submittal of the draft Work Plan for PWD review, CONSULTANT will 

facilitate a virtual 1-hour page-turn review meeting of the Work Plan to discuss staff feedback. 

Based on feedback provided by PWD staff, CONSULTANT will finalize the Work Plan for submittal 

to DSOD. 

The alternatives evaluation will be presented in a memorandum with a comparison matrix 

addressing estimated cost and constructability considerations.  Costs will be approximate and will 

be based on industry quotes for drilling, grouting and other items of work.  Referring to Task 401, 

alternatives to fix the identified issues may include:  

• Leakage at the spillway due to the lack of water stops:  Consider using expansive joint 

sealants or other appropriate products to mitigate the leakage.   

• Leakage into the dam bays:  Control of leakage into the dam bays could include chemical 

grouting (e.g., using polyurethane) of the joints in the arch barrels (based on videos from 

PWD) or by enhanced drainage to permit entry into and inspection of the dam bays, or by 

a combination of both.   

• Clogged weep holes in the dam:  We assume that this item refers to the existing drain 

holes in the arch bays.  The drainage laterals between Buttresses 10 and 11 and between 

Buttresses 20 and 21, other drainage locations, and the sump downstream of the dam, 

should be checked that they are open and clear of debris.  In addition, it may be necessary 

to either ream out the existing drain holes or drill new drain holes, or both.   

Deliverables for Task 301: 

• Draft Work Plan – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Final Work Plan – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Work Plan Review Meeting 

o Meeting agenda and presentation materials – One (1) electronic copy in pdf 

format 

o Meeting minutes – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

TASK 302 –REMEDIATION WORK PLAN DSOD COORDINATION 

To facilitate obtaining DSOD concurrence with the remediation approach prior to developing 

design documents, CONSULTANT will coordinate with PWD a 1-hour meeting with DSOD to 

present the findings, alternatives considered and recommended approach for moving forward. 

The meeting will be virtual. CONSULTANT will develop an agenda, and presentation materials, and 

capture meeting minutes of the discussion. 

Following receipt of DSOD’s comments, CONSULTANT will revise and finalize the remediation work 

plan. 

Deliverables for Task 302: 

• DSOD Work Plan Review Meeting 

o Meeting agenda and presentation materials – One (1) electronic copy in pdf 

format 

o Meeting minutes – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 



• Revised Final Work Plan – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

TASK 400 – SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 

TASK 401 –BID DOCUMENTS PREPARATION 

Once the remediation plans proposed under Task 300 are agreed upon with PWD and DSOD, 

CONSULTANT will develop Technical Specifications and relevant drawings detailing the required 

fixes to address: 

• Leakage at the spillway due to the lack of water stops; 

• Leakage into the dam bays; and, 

• Clogged weep holes in the dam. 

CONSULTANT will prepare and submit draft specifications and drawings for PWD review. Along 

with the draft design, CONSULTANT will provide a comment response log to PWD for any 

requested changes. CONSULTANT will evaluate comments provided by PWD and schedule a 

comment review meeting approximately one (1) calendar week after PWD’s completed review. 

CONSULTANT will complete comment resolution and prepare final specifications and drawings to 

submit to PWD. 

The drawings and specifications will indicate the final installation requirements, but construction 

means and methods will be the contractor’s responsibility.  The three technical specifications 

would likely include drilling (for weep/drain holes and for grouting), chemical grouting, and 

waterstop/joint sealant installation.   

We note that some of the work is specialized; e.g., drilling/reaming out drain holes and chemical 

grouting.  As such, one or more specialty subcontractors may be needed for this work.   

Assumptions: 

• 3 drawings and 3 specifications 

• PWD will provide all other specifications required for bidding and prepare the bid 

packages.  

Deliverables for Task 401: 

• Draft Specifications and Drawings – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Comment Review Meeting 

o Meeting agenda and presentation materials – One (1) electronic copy in pdf 

format 

o Meeting minutes – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Final Specifications and Drawings – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Final Comment Response Log – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

TASK 402 –DESIGN DSOD COORDINATION 

To facilitate obtaining DSOD concurrence with the design documents, CONSULTANT will 

coordinate with PWD a 1-hour meeting with DSOD to present our design package and answer 

questions DSOD may have on the approach. The meeting will be virtual. CONSULTANT will develop 



an agenda, presentation Materials, and capture meeting minutes of the discussion. Following 

receipt of DSOD’s comments, CONSULTANT will complete comment resolution and prepare final 

specifications and drawings to submit to PWD. The package will be Issued for Bid. 

Deliverables for Task 402: 

• Design Review Meeting 

o Meeting agenda and presentation materials – One (1) electronic copy in pdf 

format 

o Meeting minutes – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

• Responses to DSOD’s Comments 

• Issued for Bid Design Documents 

TASK 500 – CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

TASK 501 –BIDDING PHASE SUPPORT 

CONSULTANT will provide assistance to PWD during the bidding phase of the remediation 

contract. Under this task CONSULTANT shall draft responses to questions from prospective 

proposers and prepare addenda that provide supplementary details, clarifications, and/or revise 

the drawings and specifications, as needed, and directed by PWD. 

Assumptions: 

Development of 1 design addenda has been assumed in the level of effort. 

PWD will handle advertising for bids.  

Deliverables for Task 501: 

• Addenda – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format. 

• Virtual Meeting Agenda’s and Presentation Materials – One (1) electronic copy in MS 

Word or PowerPoint and electronic copy (pdf). 

• Meeting Minutes – One (1) electronic copy submitted electronically within 10 days of a 

meeting 

TASK 502 –CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

Once a contract has been awarded, CONSULTANT will develop and issue the For Construction 

drawings and specifications, incorporating any contract addenda that have been developed under 

Task 501 and the winning bid. 

Deliverables for Task 502: 

Issued For Construction drawings and specifications - One (1) electronic copy 

TASK 503 –CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 

CONSULTANT will provide a resident engineer to inspect the construction activities. We assume 1 

engineer will be onsite full-time while the fixes are installed at the spillway, dam bays, and dam 

weep holes. Daily Field Reports will be prepared and submitted to PWD documenting the work 



activities, progress being made, any challenges encountered and how they were addressed. 

Littlerock Dam DSOD Action Items Project. 

A qualified Civil Engineer from AECOM’s Orange office will fill the resident engineer’s role and will 

work under the supervision of the Engineer of Record.  

Assumptions: 

For the purposes of this proposal, we have assumed a construction duration of two 6-day weeks, 

10-hour workdays. 

Deliverables for Task 503: 

Daily Field Reports – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format. 

 

TASK 600 – AS-BUILT DRAWINGS AND CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION REPORT 

CONSULTANT will document the completion of construction in the following documents, for submittal 

to DSOD. 

TASK 601 –AS-BUILT DRAWINGS 

FOLLOWING COMPLETION of the remediation construction activities, CONSULTANT will prepare a 

set of as-built drawings of the fixes. 

Three as-built drawings of the bid set will be prepared, and signed and stamped by the AECOM 

Engineer of Record.   

Deliverables for Task 601: 

As-Built Drawings – One (1) electronic copy 

TASK 602 –CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION REPORT 

CONSULTANT will prepare a Construction Completion Report documenting the construction 

activities for each of the fixes. The methods used to construct the remediation, photographs, and 

daily inspection reports will be incorporated into the completion report. Following electronic 

submittal of the draft Completion Report for PWD review, CONSULTANT will facilitate a virtual 1-

hour page-turn review meeting of the Completion Report to discuss staff feedback. Based on 

feedback provided by PWD staff, CONSULTANT will finalize the Completion Report for submittal to 

DSOD. 

Besides the above items, the Construction Completion Report will also include QC data, and key 

observations and resolutions.   

Deliverables for Task 602: 

• Draft Construction Completion Report – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format  

• Final Construction Completion Report – One (1) electronic copy in pdf format 

 



LI
TT

LE
RO

CK
 D

AM
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ch
ed

ul
e

W
ee

k:
Ta

sk
 N

o.
/D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
TA

SK
 1

00
 - 

PR
O

JE
CT

 A
DM

IN
/M

GM
T

TA
SK

 1
01

 - 
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

GM
T

N
TP

/p
ro

je
ct

 se
t-

up
, Q

A/
Q

C
cl

os
e-

ou
t

TA
SK

 1
02

 –
 P

RO
JE

CT
 K

IC
K-

O
FF

 M
TG

TA
SK

 2
00

 –
 S

IT
E 

EV
AL

U
AT

IO
N

TA
SK

 2
01

 –
 D

AT
A 

RE
VI

EW
TA

SK
 2

02
 –

SI
TE

 V
IS

IT

TA
SK

 3
00

 –
 R

EM
ED

IA
TI

O
N

 W
O

RK
 P

LA
N

TA
SK

 3
01

 –
W

O
RK

 P
LA

N
TA

SK
 3

02
 –

RE
M

ED
IA

TI
O

N
 W

O
RK

 P
LA

N
 D

SO
D 

CO
O

RD

TA
SK

 4
00

 –
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D 

DR
AW

IN
GS

TA
SK

 4
01

 –
BI

D 
DO

CU
M

EN
TS

 P
RE

PA
RA

TI
O

N
TA

SK
 4

02
 –

DE
SI

GN
 D

SO
D 

CO
O

RD
IN

AT
IO

N

TA
SK

 5
00

 –
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 S

U
PP

O
RT

TA
SK

 5
01

 –
BI

DD
IN

G 
PH

AS
E 

SU
PP

O
RT

TA
SK

 5
02

 –
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

TA
SK

 5
03

 –
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

TA
SK

 6
00

 –
 A

S-
BU

IL
T 

DW
GS

 &
 C

O
N

ST
 C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 R
EP

O
RT

TA
SK

 6
01

 –
AS

-B
U

IL
T 

DR
AW

IN
GS

TA
SK

 6
02

 –
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 R

EP
O

RT



LI
TT

LE
RO

CK
 D

AM
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

Pr
oj

ec
t F

ee
 E

st
im

at
e 

- A
EC

O
M

Pr
in

ci
pa

l/Q
C

Pr
oj

 M
gr

Pr
oj

 E
ng

r
St

af
f E

ng
r

CA
D/

Ci
vi

l
Ad

m
in

Ta
sk

 N
o.

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Bi
lli

ng
 R

at
e

 $
   

   
  3

20
.0

0
 $

   
  3

20
.0

0
 $

   
  2

50
.0

0
 $

   
  1

60
.0

0
 $

   
  1

60
.0

0
 $

   
 1

00
.0

0
To

ta
l H

rs
La

bo
r E

st
.

O
DC

s
To

ta
l E

st
.

TA
SK

 1
00

 - 
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

DM
IN

/M
GM

T
TA

SK
 1

01
 - 

PR
O

JE
CT

 M
GM

T
4

40
24

68
16

,4
80

$
16

,4
80

$
TA

SK
 1

02
 –

 P
RO

JE
CT

 K
IC

K-
O

FF
 M

TG
2

8
4

14
4,

20
0

$
4,

20
0

$

TA
SK

 2
00

 –
 S

IT
E 

EV
AL

U
AT

IO
N

TA
SK

 2
01

 –
 D

AT
A 

RE
VI

EW
4

16
16

36
7,

84
0

$
7,

84
0

$
TA

SK
 2

02
 –

SI
TE

 V
IS

IT
1 

da
y,

 2
 st

af
f

10
2

12
24

5,
62

0
$

44
8

$
6,

06
8

$

TA
SK

 3
00

 –
 R

EM
ED

IA
TI

O
N

 W
O

RK
 P

LA
N

TA
SK

 3
01

 –
W

O
RK

 P
LA

N
Dr

af
t, 

Fi
na

l, 
Re

vi
ew

 m
ee

tin
g

4
8

24
40

76
16

,2
40

$
16

,2
40

$
TA

SK
 3

02
 –

RE
M

ED
IA

TI
O

N
 W

O
RK

 P
LA

N
 D

SO
D 

CO
O

RD
1-

ho
ur

 m
ee

tin
g,

 re
vi

se
d 

w
or

k 
pl

an
8

8
4

20
5,

20
0

$
5,

20
0

$

TA
SK

 4
00

 –
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D 

DR
AW

IN
GS

TA
SK

 4
01

 –
BI

D 
DO

CU
M

EN
TS

 P
RE

PA
RA

TI
O

N
Re

vi
ew

 m
tg

 ~
1 

ca
l w

ee
k 

af
te

r P
W

D’
s r

ev
ie

w
2

8
24

32
48

11
4

22
,0

00
$

22
,0

00
$

TA
SK

 4
02

 –
DE

SI
GN

 D
SO

D 
CO

O
RD

IN
AT

IO
N

1-
ho

ur
 m

ee
tin

g;
 is

su
e 

fo
r b

id
 d

oc
s.

8
8

4
12

32
7,

12
0

$
7,

12
0

$

TA
SK

 5
00

 –
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 S

U
PP

O
RT

TA
SK

 5
01

 –
BI

DD
IN

G 
PH

AS
E 

SU
PP

O
RT

1 
de

sig
n 

ad
de

nd
um

; 1
 m

ee
tin

g
8

8
4

4
24

5,
84

0
$

5,
84

0
$

TA
SK

 5
02

 –
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

Is
su

ed
 F

or
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

dw
gs

 &
 sp

ec
s

2
4

4
2

12
2,

60
0

$
2,

60
0

$
TA

SK
 5

03
 –

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
1 

en
gr

 fu
ll-

tim
e;

 d
ur

 o
f 2

 x
 6

-d
ay

 w
ks

, 1
0-

hr
 W

Ds
4

16
12

0
14

0
24

,4
80

$
3,

24
0

$
27

,7
20

$

TA
SK

 6
00

 –
 A

S-
BU

IL
T 

DW
GS

 &
 C

O
N

ST
 C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 R
EP

O
RT

TA
SK

 6
01

 –
AS

-B
U

IL
T 

DR
AW

IN
GS

4
12

16
16

48
9,

40
0

$
9,

40
0

$
TA

SK
 6

02
 –

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 R
EP

O
RT

2
4

16
24

46
9,

76
0

$
9,

76
0

$
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

14
11

6
14

2
27

6
82

24
65

4
To

ta
l C

os
ts

4,
48

0
$

37
,1

20
$

35
,5

00
$

44
,1

60
$

13
,1

20
$

2,
40

0
$

13
6,

78
0

$
3,

68
8

$
14

0,
46

8
$



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: January 2, 2023 January 9, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Regular Board Meeting 

FROM: Jim Stanton, Information Technology Manager 
Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO 
APPROVE PROPOSAL AND PROJECT PLAN FOR UPDATING THE 
DISTRICT’S SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION SYSTEM 
(SCADA) WITH SOCAL SCADA SOLUTIONS. ($75,000.00 – NOT-TO-EXCEED– 
BUDGETED – 2022 CAPITAL LEASE FUNDING – INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY MANAGER STANTON  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with SoCal SCADA Solutions for an amount not-
to-exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00).  

Alternative Options: 

The District can leave the system as-is. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

District personnel will continue as-is.     

Background: 

The District’s current SCADA network is running in a single Internet Protocol address space over 
a mesh radio, copper and fiber network. The network consists of 50 sites, 52 radios, 60 
Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC), 3 servers, 16 clients, and 10 Operator Interface Terminals 
(OIT).     

The purpose of the SCADA network is to control the operation and distribution of water to our 
customers.  It is a vitally important network.   

The SCADA analysis will look at what we are doing, how we are doing it, compare it to industry 
standards, identify deficiencies, make recommendations for remediation and improvement, and 
develop a SCADA master plan. 

This analysis will help us meet recommendations addressed in the AWIA Cyber Assessment. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager        January 2, 2023 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 2 – Organization Excellence. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

2022 Capital Lease Funding: 
One time cost not-to-exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00). 

Supporting Documents: 

 SoCal SCADA Proposal and Project Plan
 SCADA Resources Image



Put Clients First, Always 

Jim Stanton 
Information Technology Manager 
Palmdale Water District 
2029 East Ave Q 
Palmdale, CA 93550 

Subject: 

Proposal for SCADA Master Planning Project 

Dear Mr. Stanton: 

SoCal SCADA Solutions is pleased to submit the enclosed proposal to provide 
professional services for the SCADA Mater Planning project. We fully understand 
that success of delivering this project is vital to the improvement of the District’s 
SCADA performance, and our team of subject-matter experts not only have 
extensive experiences in system planning but also in design & build SCADA system.  

Our team offers the District the following advantages: 

 Proven record in delivering full range of SCADA Services: Our team has master
planned, designed and built several SCADA systems for clients including San
Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, Irvine Ranch Water District, Walnut Valley
Water District and Cucamonga Valley Water District. Our services cover entire life
cycle of a SCADA system from condition assessment, planning, engineering design,
build, integration and on-call service support.

 Unmatched expertise: Our team of subject-matter experts specialize in controls,
SCADA, microwave radio and large-scale industrial networking.

Our goal is to develop a comprehensive SCADA Master Plan that will guide the 
District to have and maintain a state-of-art SCADA system for the future. Attach 
please find SOW in Exhibit A and cost in Exhibit B. 

We appreciate this opportunity and look forward to working with your team. Please 
contact me directly if you need further information. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Niu, PE, PMP 
Principal 

SoCal SCADA Solutions 
-  Consulting 

 -  Engineering 

 -  Design/Build 

 -  On-call Support 

I&C ENGINEERING 

SCADA SERVICES 

TELEMETRY NETWORK 

ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS 

Date: 

Oct 24, 2022 

Contact: 

Eric Niu, PE, PEng 
 

Phone: 

949.231.9173 

Email: 

eric.niu@socalscada.com 



 

 

 

 

Page: 

2/3 
Put Client First, Always 

 

Exhibit A: Scope of Work 

The goal of SCADA Master Planning is to establish an accurate picture of the existing system 
including platform, equipment, technology, limitations and deficiencies; understand the needs of 
water operations, review of the latest technologies, make recommendations for future improvement 
or upgrade. To achieve this, we recommend the following tasks: 
 

Task 1: Investigation & Site Visit  
 Collect and review all available information on the existing SCADA systems (Production 

& Distribution) including 
a. SCADA HMI Platforms/Database 
b. RTU/PLC/Control Panel at remote sites including well, reservoir and booster station 
c. Major Skid-Mounted/OEM systems at remote sites communicating to local 

RTU/PLCs  
d. Site surveillance camera if any 
e. Telemetry networks (radio/antenna/tower/network gears/communication panel) 
f. SCADA LAN/WAN networks 
g. Other systems that exchange data with SCADA (VFD/AMR/GIS/LIMS) 
h. O&M (maintenance record, spare part inventory)   

 Conduct site visits on the following sites 
a. Treatment Plants 
b. Major remote sites  

 Meeting with Operation staff and understand current operational practices of using 
SCADA  
a. Routine operations, alarm management, and reporting 
b. If available, any existing advanced functionalities and data analytics 
c. SCADA security practice including disaster recovery and emergency response   
 

Task 2: Assessment & Evaluation 
 Develop and assemble a complete and comprehensive set of system drawings for the 

existing SCADA systems  
a. System architecture drawings 
b. Radio telemetry network drawings and BOM 
c. Site specific drawings and BOM 

 Evaluate overall performance of the existing telemetry network including reliability, 
bandwidth, scalability, security, tech support and service availability    

 Cybersecurity assessment 
 Identify deficiencies, limitations, and risks across the systems   

 



 

 

 

 

Page: 

3/3 
Put Client First, Always 

 
 

 Solicit feedbacks from Operation staff on goals / needs for the current SCADA system 
and future system upgrade 

 Analyze performance improvement opportunities 
 Two workshops with the District to present findings and discuss needs 

 
Task 3: Technology Review  

 Review the latest technologies available and industry best practice on SCADA, telemetry 
network, cybersecurity, data analytics on enterprise system 

 Brainstorming new ideas and features desired for the future systems 
 Develop requirements for the improvements and upgrades 
 Conduct a presentation and workshop 

  

Task 4: Recommendations 
 Develop recommendations to address concerns and issues identified  
 Develop and prioritize a project list for future implementation including budgetary 

cost estimate 
 

Task 5: Final Report  
 Develop a draft report for the District to review and comment  
 Finalize and submit final SCADA Master Plan Report 

 
 



P
ro
p
o
sa
l f
o
r 
P
al
m
d
al
e
 W

at
e
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t

SC
A
D
A
 M

as
te
r 
P
la
n

C
o
st
  E
st
im

at
e

Er
ic
 N

Re
za
 A

Je
ff
 G

19
0.
00

$ 
   
   
  

18
0.
00

$ 
   
   
   

15
5.
00

$ 
   
   
 

La
bo

r
Ex
pe

ns
es

Ta
sk
 T
ot
al

Ta
sk
 1

 In
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
&
 S
ite

 V
is
it

48
16

36
10

0
17

,5
80

.0
0

$ 
  

2,
20

0.
00

$ 
 

19
,7
80

.0
0

$ 
  

1
.1

C
o
lle
ct
, r
ev
ie
w
 a
n
d
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
t 
al
l a
va
ila
b
le
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
xi
si
tn
g 
SC
A
D
A
 s
ys
te
m

8
8

4
20

3,
58

0.
00

$ 
   
 

1
.2

C
o
n
d
u
ct
 s
it
e
 v
is
it
s 
(3
 d
ay
s)

24
8

24
56

9,
72

0.
00

$ 
   
 

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
 

1
.3

C
o
n
d
u
ct
 m

e
e
ti
n
gs
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
O
p
er
at
io
n
 S
ta
ff
 

16
8

24
4,
28

0.
00

$ 
   
 

20
0.
00

$ 
   
 

Ta
sk
 2

As
se
ss
m
en

t &
 E
va
lu
at
io
n

96
28

22
14

6
26

,6
90

.0
0

$ 
  

40
0.
00

$ 
   
  

27
,0
90

.0
0

$ 
  

2
.1

D
ev
el
o
p
 a
n
d
 a
ss
e
m
b
le
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
si
ve
 s
e
t 
o
f 
sy
st
e
m
 d
ra
w
in
gs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
xi
st
in
g 
SC
A
D
A
 s
ys
te
m
s 
in
 t
re
at
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
te
 s
it
e
s

8
8

4
20

3
,5
8
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.2

Ev
al
u
at
e 
o
ve
ra
ll 
p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
f 
th
e
 e
xi
st
in
g 
te
le
m
e
tr
y 
n
e
tw

o
rk
 in
cl
u
d
in
g 
re
lia
b
ili
ty
, b
an
d
w
id
th
, s
ca
la
b
ili
ty
, s
e
cu
ri
ty
, t
e
ch
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e 

av
ai
la
b
ili
ty

16
4

4
24

4
,3
8
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.3

C
yb
e
rs
e
cu
ri
ty
 A
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t

16
4

2
22

4
,0
7
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.4

 Id
e
n
ti
fy
 d
ef
ic
ie
n
ci
es
, l
im

it
at
io
n
s,
 a
n
d
 r
is
ks
 a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 s
ys
te
m
s

16
4

2
22

4
,0
7
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.5

 S
o
lic
it
 f
ee
d
b
ac
ks
 f
ro
m
 O
p
er
at
io
n
 S
ta
ff

8
2

10
1
,8
3
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.6

 A
n
al
yz
e
 a
n
d
 id
e
n
ti
fy
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 im

p
ro
ve
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

16
4

4
24

4
,3
8
0
.0
0

$
   
   

2
.7

Tw
o
 w
o
rk
sh
o
p
s

16
4

4
24

4
,3
8
0
.0
0

$
   
   

4
0
0
.0
0

$
   
   

Ta
sk
 3

Te
ch
no

lo
gy
 R
ev
ie
w
 &
 W

or
ks
ho

p
32

8
16

48
10

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
  

20
0.
00

$ 
   
  

10
,2
00

.0
0

$ 
  

3
.1

 R
e
vi
e
w
 t
h
e
 la
te
st
 t
e
ch
n
o
lo
gi
e
s 
av
ai
la
b
le
 a
n
d
 in
d
u
st
ry
 b
e
st
 p
ra
ct
ic
e
s

16
16

3,
04

0.
00

$ 
   
 

3
.2

 D
ev
el
o
p
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ze
 n
e
w
 id
e
as
 a
n
d
 f
e
at
u
re
s 
d
e
si
re
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 s
ys
te
m
s

4
4

4
8

2,
10

0.
00

$ 
   
 

3
.3

 D
ev
el
o
p
 f
u
n
ct
io
n
al
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 im

p
ro
ve
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 u
p
gr
ad
e
s

8
4

8
16

3,
48

0.
00

$ 
   
 

3
.4

 C
o
n
d
u
ct
 a
 p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
sh
o
p

4
4

8
1,
38

0.
00

$ 
   
 

20
0.
00

$ 
   
 

Ta
sk
 4

Re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
24

4
16

44
7,
76

0.
00

$ 
   
  

‐
$ 
   
   
   
  

7,
76

0.
00

$ 
   
  

4
.1

D
ev
el
o
p
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
at
io
n
s

8
4

8
20

3,
48

0.
00

$ 
   
 

4
.2

D
ev
el
o
p
 p
ro
je
ct
 li
st
 w
it
h
 b
u
d
ge
ta
ry
 c
o
st
 e
st
im

at
e

16
8

24
4,
28

0.
00

$ 
   
 

Ta
sk
 5

D
ev
el
op

m
en

t o
f R

ep
or
t

32
4

4
40

7,
42

0.
00

$ 
   
  

16
0.
00

$ 
   
  

7,
58

0.
00

$ 
   
  

5
.1

 D
ev
el
o
p
 a
 d
ra
ft
 r
ep

o
rt
 in
cl
u
d
in
g 
fi
n
al
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
at
io
n
s

16
2

2
20

3,
71

0.
00

$ 
   
 

80
.0
0

$ 
   
   

5
.2

 F
in
al
iz
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
 f
in
al
 S
C
A
D
A
 M

as
te
r 
P
la
n
 R
ep

o
rt

16
2

2
20

3,
71

0.
00

$ 
   
 

80
.0
0

$ 
   
   

23
2

60
94

43
0

69
,4
50

.0
0

$ 
  

2,
96

0.
00

$ 
 

72
,4
10

.0
0

$ 
  

La
bo

r H
ou

rs
Co

st
 It
em

s

Ex
hi
bi
t B

 ‐ 
Co

st
   
   
 

   
   
   
SC
AD

A 
M
as
te
r P

la
nn

in
g

D
es
cr
ip
tio

n

   
To

ta
l

N
am

e/
Ra

te
D
et
ai
ls

1
0
/2
4
/2
0
2
2





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1


























	AgendaRegular1-9-23
	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item6.3
	Item6.4
	Item6.5
	Item6.6
	Item6.7
	Item6.8
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item7.5-reduced
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8

	Item8.1



